
 
Agenda 

College Station City Council 
Regular Meeting 

Thursday, March 22, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. 
City Hall Council Chamber, 1101 Texas Avenue 

College Station, Texas 
 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests 
 

Hear Visitors:  Any citizen may address the City Council on any item which does 
not appear on the posted Agenda.  Registration forms are available in the lobby 
and at the desk of the City Secretary.  This form should be completed and 
delivered to the City Secretary by 6:45 p.m.  Please limit remarks to three 
minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal that you have 
thirty seconds remaining so that you may conclude your remarks.  The City 
Council will receive the information, ask staff to look into the matter, or place the 
issue on a future agenda.  Topics of operational concerns shall be directed to the 
City Manager. 
 

Consent Agenda 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a consent or regular agenda item not 
posted as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s 
reading of the agenda item.  Registration forms are available in the lobby and at the desk 
of the City Secretary.  The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward 
to speak for or against the item.  The speaker will please state their name and address for 
the record and provided three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to 
signal thirty seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.     
 

Vision Statement I - Core Services   
Professionals providing world-class customer focused services at a competitive cost 

through innovation and planning. 
 
 

2. Presentation, possible action, and discussion of consent agenda items which consists of 
ministerial or “housekeeping” items required by law. Items may be removed from the 
consent agenda by majority vote of the Council. 

1



 
a. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 

supporting the construction of the I-69 and the East West Corridor (I-14) 
and requesting the expansion of the corridors’ study areas to include 
Brazos County. 

 
b. Presentation, discussion, and possible action on consideration of an 

ordinance amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” to restrict parking on 
both sides of Victoria Avenue between Rock Prairie Road and SH 40 
(William D. Fitch Parkway), so bike lanes can be added. 

 
c. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the renewal of an 

annual price agreement for Janitorial Supplies, bid #06-44, in the amount 
of $54,498.31. 

 
d. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 

determining the public necessity to acquire right-of-way and easement 
interests for the Rock Prairie Road Widening Design and ROW Project. 

 
e. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 

contract with Information Station Specialists for the purchase and 
construction of a secondary low power AM emergency advisory radio 
transmitter and flashing beacons and associated radio and solar power 
units for advisory signs in an amount not to exceed $82,980. 

 
f. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding on the second 

reading of an ordinance approving a non-exclusive gas and oil gathering 
franchise agreement with Energy Transfer Corporation. 

 
g. Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the racial profile 

report required annually by Senate Bill 1074, of the Texas 77th legislative 
session. 

 
h. Presentation, possible action and discussion on a bid award for the 

purchase of various padmount transformers maintained in inventory to HD 
Supply for $43,050.00 and KBS Electrical for $16,875.00 for total 
expenditures of $59,925.00.  Bid #07-57 

 
i. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of 

minutes for the College Station City Council Workshop and Regular 
Meeting of March 8, 2007. 

 
 
Regular Agenda 
 
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on a regular agenda item not posted 
as a public hearing shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s reading of 

2



the agenda item.  The Mayor will recognize you to come forward to speak for or against 
the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record and allowed three 
minutes. A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty seconds remaining 
so that the speaker may conclude your remarks. 
  
Individuals who wish to address the City Council on an item posted as a public hearing 
shall register with the City Secretary prior to the Mayor’s announcement to open the 
public hearing.   The Mayor will recognize individuals who wish to come forward to 
speak for or against the item.  The speaker will state their name and address for the record 
and allowed three minutes.  A timer alarm will sound after 2 1/2 minutes to signal thirty 
seconds remaining so that the speaker may conclude your remarks.    After a public 
hearing is closed, there shall be no additional public comments.  If Council needs 
additional information from the general public, some limited comments may be allowed 
at the discretion of the Mayor.    
 
If an individual does not wish to address the City Council, but still wishes to be recorded 
in the official minutes as being in support or opposition to an agenda item, the individual 
may complete the registration form provided in the lobby by providing the name, address, 
and comments about a city related subject.  These comments will be referred to the City 
Council and City Manager.   
 

Vision Statement III – Planning and Development 
Professionals who plan and develop a sustainable community balancing neighborhood 

and community interests. 
 

1. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for one 5-acre lot from Single Family 
Residential Medium Density to Planned Development, located at 1850 William D. 
Fitch Parkway. 

 
2. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

rezoning one 5-acre lot from A-O (Agricultural Open) to PDD (Planned 
Development District), located at 1850 William D. Fitch Parkway. 

 
3. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan from Single Family Residential, High 
Density to a mix of Neighborhood Retail, Residential Attached, and Planned 
Development for 110 lots on 89.563 acres of the property generally surrounded by 
FM 2818, Holleman Drive West, Jones Butler Road, and Luther West. 

 
4. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

rezoning .52 acres from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to R-4 (Multi-Family 
Residential), located at 701 Luther Street West.  

 

3



5. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 
rezoning 3.13 acres from C-1 (General Commercial) to R-4 (Multi-Family) and A-
O (Agricultural Open) located at 1505 University Drive, just north of Home Depot. 

 
6. Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an ordinance 

rezoning 1.996 acres from  A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-OR (Rural Residential), 
located at 3105 Freneau Drive. 

 
Vision Statement IV – Economic Development 

Professionals promoting a robust, sustainable, growing, and diverse economic 
environment. 

 
7. Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a memorandum 

of understanding to sell the Spring Creek Business Park tract. 
 
8. The City Council may convene the executive session following the regular meeting 

to discuss matters posted on the executive session agenda for March 22, 2007. 
 
9. Final action on executive session, if necessary. 

 
10. Adjourn. 

 
If litigation issues arise to the posted subject matter of these Council Meetings an 
executive session will be held. 
 
APPROVED: 
 

__

E-Signed by Glenn Brown
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

______________________________ 
City Manager  
 
Notice is hereby given that a Regular Meeting of the City Council of the City of College 
Station, Texas will be held on the Thursday, March 22, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. at the City Hall 
Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue, College Station, Texas.  The following subjects 
will be discussed, to wit:  See Agenda. 
 
Posted this the 19th    day of March, 2007 at 2:45 p.m. 
 

_

E-Signed by Connie Hooks
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

_______________________________ 
City Secretary 
 
I, the undersigned, do hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Governing 
Body of the City of College Station, Texas, is a true and correct copy of said Notice and 

4



that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the bulletin board at City Hall, 1101 
Texas Avenue, in College Station, Texas, and the City’s website, www.cstx.gov .  The 
Agenda and Notice are readily accessible to the general public at all times.  Said Notice 
and Agenda were posted on March 19, 2007 at 2:45 p.m. and remained so posted 
continuously for at least 72 hours proceeding the scheduled time of said meeting. 
 
This public notice was removed from the official posting board at the College Station 
City Hall on the following date and time:  __________________________ by 
________________________. 
 
    Dated this _____day of ________________, 2007. 
    By______________________________________ 
 
Subscribed and sworn to before me on this the _____day of ________________, 2007. 
 
______________________________   
Notary Public – Brazos County, Texas  My commission expires: ___________ 
 
The building is wheelchair accessible.  Handicap parking spaces are available.  Any 
request for sign interpretive service must be made 48 hours before the meeting.  To make 
arrangements call (979) 764-3517 or (TDD) 1-800-735-2989.  Agendas may be viewed 
on www.cstx.gov .  Council meetings are broadcast live on Cable Access Channel 19. 
 
 
 
 

5



 

March 22, 2007 
Consent Agenda Item  

Interstate 69/East-West Corridor (I-14) Resolution 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Kathy Merrill, Assistant City Manager                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
supporting the construction of the I-69 and the East West Corridor (I-14) and requesting 
the expansion of the corridors’ study areas to include Brazos County. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):  Staff recommends approval of the resolution.  
 
 
Summary:  Economic development and job creation for the College Station area continues 
to be hampered by the lack of transportation service from an interstate highway.  The 
attached resolution requests that the study areas for two proposed interstate highway 
projects, Interstate 69 and the East-West Corridor (I-14), be expanded to include Brazos 
County. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 
1.  Resolution 
 
 
 

NEW COVERSHEET FORMAT EXAMPLE 1 

6

Consent Item 2a



RESOLUTION NO. ____________ 
 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, REQUESTING THAT: (1) THE STUDY AREA FOR THE TTC-69 BE 
EXPANDED TO INCLUDE BRAZOS COUNTY; (2) THE PROPOSED TTC-69 ROUTE 
ENTER BRAZOS COUNTY; AND (3)  THE PROPOSED EAST WEST CORRIDOR 
INCLUDE BRAZOS COUNTY. 
 
 
WHEREAS, economic development and job creation for the College Station area has been 
hampered by the lack of transportation service from an interstate highway; and, 
 
WHEREAS, an effort has been underway for over a decade to build a new interstate 
highway, I-69, linking the US/Mexico Border to Canada; and, 
 
WHEREAS, half of the freight traffic between the United States and Mexico passes 
through Laredo and the Lower Rio Grande Valley which would be served by the proposed 
I-69 route; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation proposes to build I-69 as Trans-
Texas Corridor 69 (TTC-69); and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Port of Brownsville, Port of Corpus Christi and the Port of Houston will 
be connected to the proposed TTC-69 route; and,  
 
WHEREAS, the Brazos Valley has the opportunity to be served by TTC-69 and share in 
the economic development, service to business and job creation the corridor will bring; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation has approved a $2,000,000.00 study 
to determine the feasibility of an East-West Corridor from El Paso to Louisiana which 
could provide the basis for “Strategic Interstate 14” to serve Central Texas; now, therefore, 
 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE 
STATION, TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That the City of College Station requests that the study area for TTC-69 be 

expanded to include Brazos County;  
 
PART 2: That the proposed TTC-69 route enter Brazos County to serve our existing 

industrial base and the future industrial sites proposed for the City of 
College Station and Brazos County.  

 
PART 3: That the proposed East West Corridor include Brazos County to serve our 

existing industrial base and the future industrial sites proposed for the City 
of College Station and Brazos County. 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Resolution.doc 

7

Consent Item 2a



ORDINANCE NO. _________________      Page 2 
 
 

C:\DOCUME~1\DCODY~1.CST\LOCALS~1\Temp\Resolution.doc 

 
ADOPTED this _______ day of ________________________, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
_____________________________   ______________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

_____________________________ 
City Attorney 

8

Consent Item 2a



 

March 22, 2006 
Consent Agenda 

Victoria Avenue Parking Restrictions 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, discussion, and possible action on consideration of an 
ordinance amending Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” to restrict parking on both sides of Victoria 
Avenue between Rock Prairie Road and SH 40 (William D. Fitch Parkway), so bike lanes can 
be added. 
 
Recommendation(s):     Staff recommends approval of the ordinance amendment. 
 
Summary:  This item will amend Chapter 10, “Traffic Code,” by restricting parking on 
both sides of Victoria Avenue between Rock Prairie Road and SH 40 (William D. Fitch 
Parkway) to add bike lanes in accordance with the city’s approved Bike and Pedestrian 
Master Plan.  On the section of Victoria between Rock Prairie Road and Graham Road, the 
parking has already been removed and bike lanes striped.  This ordinance will allow the bike 
lanes to extend south improving bike and pedestrian connectivity.   
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  The “No Parking” and “Bike Lane” signs as well as 
striping are planned operation and maintenance expenses accounted for in the Public Works 
Traffic Operation budget. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Ordinance 
2. Location Map 

 

9

Consent Item 2b



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 10, “TRAFFIC CODE”, OF THE CODE OF 
ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING 
CERTAIN SECTIONS AS SET OUT BELOW; PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; 
DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS: 
 
PART 1: That Chapter 10, “Traffic Code”, of the Code of Ordinances of the City of 

College Station, Texas, be amended as set out in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
made a part of this ordinance for all purposes. 

 
PART 2: That if any provisions of any section of this ordinance shall be held to be void or 

unconstitutional, such holding shall in no way effect the validity of the remaining 
provisions or sections of this ordinance, which shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

 
PART 3: That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 

chapter shall be deemed liable for a civil offense and, upon a finding of liability 
thereof, shall be punished by a civil penalty of not less than One Dollar ($1.00) 
nor more than nor more than Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00).  Said Ordinance 
becomes effective ten (10) days after its date of passage by the City Council, as 
provided by Section 35 of the Charter of the City of College Station. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and APPROVED this ________ day of ______________________, 2007. 
 

      APPROVED: 
 
 

    ____________________________________ 
    RON SILVIA, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Connie Hooks, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
 

E-Signed by Angela M. DeLuca
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt

 
_________________________ 
City Attorney 

O/group/legal/ordinance/amendmentform.doc 10

Consent Item 2b



ORDINANCE NO.__________________  Page 2 
 
 
 

 
 
 

EXHIBIT “A” 
 
 

That Traffic Control Device Inventory - Schedule XI as referenced in Chapter 10, “Traffic 
Code”, Section 4 “Administrative Adjudication of Parking Violations”, Sub-section E “No 
Parking” is hereby amended to include the following: 

 
“No Parking on both sides of Victoria Avenue between Rock Prairie Road and SH 40 
(William D. Fitch Parkway).” 
 

11

Consent Item 2b



Victoria Avenue
Parking Removal March 22, 2007Ê

0 1,250 2,500625
Feet

Victoria Avenue

Grah
am

 Road

Longmire Drive

Welsh Avenue

Proposed Parking Removal
for Bike Lanes

Existing Bike Lanes

Bike Lanes will be added
as part of widening project

Barro
n R

oad

Rock P
rairie Road

Wellborn Road

SH 6

William D. Fitch Pky

12

Consent Item 2b



 

 
Consent Agenda 

Annual Price Agreement for Janitorial Supplies 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the renewal of 
an annual price agreement for Janitorial Supplies, bid #06-44, in the amount of $54,498.31.  
 
Recommendation(s):    Staff recommends renewal of the contract to Pro Star Industries 
for $54,498.31.  
 
 
Summary:    On March 23, 2006 council approved an annual price agreement to Pro Star 
Industries (Item 12.6) for janitorial supplies, not to exceed $54,498.31. 
 
Renewal is dependent upon mutual consent of the City and the vendor. This is the first 
renewal of the agreement. The renewal is for one (1) year, from March 24, 2007- March 23, 
2008, with one (1) additional year remaining.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:     Funds are budgeted and available in the Public Works 
Facilities Maintenance Operations Budget. 
 
 
Attachments:   
 

1. Renewal Letter. 
 
 

 

13

Consent Item 2c



14

Consent Item 2c



 

March 22, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Rock Prairie Road East Widening Needs Resolution No. 3 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Mark Smith, Director of Public Works                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding a resolution 
determining the public necessity to acquire right-of-way and easement interests for the 
Rock Prairie Road East Widening Design and ROW Project. 
 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the resolution. 
 
 
Summary: Additional easement and right-of-way space is required for public utilities, 
access, landscape, and construction of improvements along Rock Prairie Road East between 
the Bradley Road and Greens Prairie Road. The design will be completed by the June 2007.  
Pending right-of-way and easement acquisition is expected to start soon after City Council’s 
approval of this resolution.  This is the third in a series of three Needs Resolutions to cover 
all the ROW and easements necessary to purchase three and a half miles of property along 
Rock Prairie Road East. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: The budget for the Rock Prairie Road East Widening 
Design and ROW Project is $2,969,000. A total of $841,863.58 has been expended or 
committed to date for the design of this project, leaving a balance of $2,127,136.42. These 
expenditures are currently estimated for FY08 and FY09. Funding for this project is from the 
2003 general obligation bond fund.   
  
 
 
Attachments: 
 

1. Location Map 
2. Needs Resolution 
3. Exhibit A – Legal descriptions of property to be acquired available in the City 

Secretary’s Office. 
4. Exhibit B – Legal descriptions of property to be acquired available in the City 

Secretary’s Office.  
 
 
 

 

15

Consent Item 2d



ROCK PRAIRIE PARKROCK PRAIRIE PARK

W
ill

ia
m

 D
. F

itc
h 

Pk
wy

Rock Prairie Rd

O
lden Ln

Br
ad

le
y 

Rd

Ca
rll

 L
n

1 inch equals 600 feet

0 600 1,200300
Feet

ROW and Easements shall be purchased along Rock Prairie Road 
from Bradley Road to Greens Prairie Road such that there is 120' 
for the roadway and 20' of electrical easements on both sides of the road.

16

Consent Item 2d



 
 

RESOLUTION DETERMINING NEED 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. ________________ 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, 
TEXAS, RELATING TO: (1) THE AUTHORITY OF THE CITY TO INITIATE, 
COMPLETE, AND ACQUIRE, BY PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION, RIGHT-OF-
WAY AND EASEMENT INTEREST IN CERTAIN PROPERTY FOR THE ROCK 
PRAIRIE ROAD WIDENING PROJECT; (2) A DECLARATION THAT PUBLIC 
NECESSITY EXISTS FOR THE CITY TO ACQUIRE SUCH INTEREST, THROUGH 
PURCHASE OR CONDEMNATION; AND (3) ESTABLISHING PROCEDURES FOR 
THE ACQUISITION OF SUCH INTEREST IN THE PROPERTY. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of College Station, Texas (“City”) is a home rule municipality duly 
incorporated and chartered under the Constitution and laws of Texas; and   
 
WHEREAS, the City owns, operates, constructs, repairs and maintains a city roadway 
system as a public service; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City’s ownership, operation, construction, repair, and maintenance of 
the city roadway system is a benefit to the public; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City, through a condemnation proceeding, may exercise the power of 
eminent domain to acquire property in order to carry out the ownership, operation, 
construction, repair, and maintenance of its street system pursuant to Chapter 251 of the 
Texas Local Government Code, Chapter 21 of the Texas Property Code, and Article II of 
the City’s Charter; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City is engaged in the following project regarding improvements to 
Rock Prairie Road between Highway 6 and William D. Fitch Parkway, including 
widening of the road, installation of public utilities, access, and landscaping,  (the 
“Project”); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City determines that the best interests and needs of the public, including 
the health, safety and welfare of the public, require that the City improve Rock Prairie 
Road between Highway 6 and William D. Fitch Parkway, through the City’s acquisition, 
by purchase or condemnation proceeding, of the right-of-way and easements as provided 
in Exhibits A and B, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference for all purposes 
(the “Right-of-Way and Easements”); now, therefore; 
 
BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas: 
 

17

Consent Item 2d



ORDINANCE NO. _______________               Page 2 
 
 
PART 1: That the City Council of the City of College Station, Texas, hereby 

officially determines that there is a public necessity for the Right-of-Way 
and Easements, and the public welfare and convenience will be served by 
the acquisition of the Right-of-Way and Easements. 

 
PART 2: That the City Manager is hereby authorized to contract, on behalf of the 

City of College Station, with a professional appraiser for the appraisal 
services, with a professional real estate agent to act as a Land Agent for 
the City and with attorneys for preparation of title opinions needed by the 
City from time to time in connection with acquisition of the Right-of-Way 
and Easements. 

 
PART 3: That the City’s Land Agent or other staff appraiser is hereby authorized 

and directed to examine the independent appraisal reports as they are 
submitted to the City  to determine whether said appraisal reports are 
supported by sufficient data.  Based upon such examination of said 
appraisal reports, the Land Agent or other staff appraiser shall make a 
recommendation to the City Manager as to the establishment and approval 
of the amount of the just compensation for the Right-of-Way and 
Easements. 

 
PART 4: After consideration of said recommendation, the City Manager shall 

establish and approve the amount determined for acquisition of the Right-
of-Way and Easements. 

 
PART 5: Upon establishment and approval by the City Manager of the amount of 

just compensation for the acquisition of the Right-of-Way and Easements, 
the City’s Land Agent or other staff appraiser is authorized to 
communicate a written offer to the property owners for the acquisition of 
such interest at the full amount determined and established to be just 
compensation therefore and to negotiate with said owners on behalf of the 
City. 

 
PART 6: That the Mayor after approval by City Council, or the City Manager as 

delegated, is hereby authorized to execute all documents necessary to 
acquire said Right-of-Way and Easements for the Project, on behalf of the 
City of College Station. 

 
PART 7: That, if necessary, and should a property owner fail to accept a bona fide, 

good faith offer from the City to purchase the required Right-of-Way and 
Easements, City representatives shall have the authority to initiate and 
complete condemnation proceedings against said owner, in order to 

18

Consent Item 2d



ORDINANCE NO. _______________               Page 3 
 
 

acquire through condemnation all required property interests and title 
regarding such property. 

 
PART 8: That the City Manager be and is hereby authorized to sell any such surplus 

improvements, or order the demolition thereof, if any, located on the real 
property acquired in connection with this Project. 

 
PART 9: That this resolution shall take effect immediately from and after its 

passage. 
 
 
ADOPTED this ________ day of ____________________________, A.D. 2007. 
 
 
ATTEST:      APPROVED: 
 
 
____________________________   ______________________________ 
CONNIE HOOKS, City Secretary   RON SILVIA, Mayor 
 
 
 
APPROVED: 
 

E-Signed by Carla A. Robinson
VERIFY authenticity with ApproveIt  

____________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
 

19

Consent Item 2d



 

March 22, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Low Power AM Emergency Advisory Radio System Purchase 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
contract with Information Station Specialists for the purchase and construction of a 
secondary low power AM emergency advisory radio transmitter and flashing beacons and 
associated radio and solar power units for advisory signs in an amount not to exceed 
$82,980. 
 
Recommendation(s): Staff recommends approval of the contract for the secondary 
low power AM emergency advisory radio transmitter and flashing beacons and associated 
radio and solar power units for advisory signs. 
 
Summary:  Low Power AM emergency advisory radio systems are used to alert the public 
to emergency or special situations.  Highway signs with beacons that flash when emergency 
alerts are aired are strategically placed to alert the public to tune into the emergency radio 
station.  In August 2004 the City of College Station, the City of Bryan, Brazos County and 
the Brazos County Emergency Communications District (Brazos 911) entered into an 
interlocal agreement for the purchase, maintenance and use just such a system in Brazos 
County.  This agreement calls for placing multiple transmitters throughout the county and 
allowing any partner to put emergency messages on any or all of the transmitters as 
needed.  Brazos 911 will pay for five primary transmitters, the City of College Station will 
negotiate the contracts and any partner may add secondary transmitters and signage to the 
system in their area.  One primary transmitter is to be placed in each city and at this time 
two (2) are planned in Brazos County outside the cities.  The City of College Station plans to 
put in a secondary transmitter and signs at strategic locations with beacons that flash when 
emergency messages are aired. 
 
During non-emergency times the College Station AM radio station will be used to air public 
messages and will be a part of the City's Communication Plan. 
 
Brazos 911 has approved their contract for the purchase and construction of four primary 
low power AM emergency advisory transmitters. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:   Funds are available for this project in the General Fund 
balance; this project was included in the FY05 and FY06 budgets with a budget of $95,000, 
but no money was spent. A budget amendment will be brought to Council in the near future 
to provide the budget appropriation for this expenditure.   
 
There are costs associated with this project that are not a part of the contract amount of 
$82,980.  The total cost of the project is expected to be approximately $110,000. Any 
expenditure that exceeds $95,000 will come from the Information Services operating 
budget.  
 
Attachments: 
Contract between the City and ISS available in hard copy in City Secretary's Office 
Contract between Brazos 911 and ISS available in hard copy in City Secretary's Office 

 

20

Consent Item 2e



 

March 22, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Energy Transfer Corporation Gas & Oil Gathering Franchise Agreement 
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer                         
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding on the second 
reading of an ordinance approving a non-exclusive gas and oil gathering franchise 
agreement with Energy Transfer Corporation. 
 
 
Recommendation(s):   Staff recommends approval of the franchise with Energy Transfer 
Corporation (ETC).  
 
 
Summary:   The City Council approved Ordinance 1923 on October 10, 1991, providing for 
an oil & gas pipeline franchise agreement with Ferguson Crossing Pipeline Company.  On 
September 13, 2001, Council approved Ordinance 2516 naming Mitchell Gas Services, L.P. 
as successor to the franchise and extending Ordinance 1923 for five years.  In September 
2003 the Mitchell Gas Services, L.P. altered its name and began doing business as Devon 
Gas Services, L.P.  On October 21, 2004, Council approved Ordinance 2762 naming Energy 
Transfer Corporation as successor to the franchise.  The franchise fee structure has not 
changed since the original franchise in 1991. 
 
While the franchise was completely rewritten two changes are significant.  The first is that 
the franchise fees are set within the ordinance and not by resolution.  The second is that 
franchise fees are applied only to pipeline in the City's right of ways and that fee was raised 
from $1.50 per linear foot to $2.50 per linear foot. 
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  Although the fee per linear foot of pipeline in the right of 
way was increased there is a decrease in the overall revenue from this franchise due to 
eliminating the franchise fee on pipeline not in the right of way.  Revenue from this 
franchise will decrease from approximately $78,000 to approximately $45,000 per year. 
 
 
Attachments: 
Franchise Ordinance 
 
 

 

21

Consent Item 2f



22

Consent Item 2f



23

Consent Item 2f



24

Consent Item 2f



25

Consent Item 2f



26

Consent Item 2f



27

Consent Item 2f



28

Consent Item 2f



29

Consent Item 2f



30

Consent Item 2f



31

Consent Item 2f



32

Consent Item 2f



33

Consent Item 2f



March 22, 2007 
Consent Agenda 

2006 Racial Profiling Analysis Report 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Michael Clancey, Chief of Police  
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action and discussion regarding the racial 
profile report required annually by Senate Bill 1074, of the Texas 77th legislative 
session. 
 
Recommendation(s):  This item is presented according to statutory requirements.  
Staff requests Council’s acceptance of this report. 
 
Summary:  Each year, in an effort to remain transparent to our community, the 
Police Department employs an independent consultant to analyze traffic stop data 
and develop this report.  This year’s analysis yields remarkable similarities to past 
year results with no significant anomalies to give rise for concern.   A copy of this 
report was provided to Council prior to March 1st in compliance with statutory 
requirements. 
 

Since January 1, 2002, the College Station Police Department, in accordance with the 
Texas Racial Profiling Law (SB No. 1074), has been required to implement and 
maintain policy and procedures to satisfy the requirements of the law. The 
requirements include: 

• Development of a policy, which clearly defines the acts that constitute racial 
profiling and prohibits any peace officer employed by the department from 
engaging in racial profiling.  

• Conduct Racial Profiling Training to Law Enforcement Officers. 

• Implementation and publication of complaint and disciplinary processes for 
addressing racial profiling complaints. 

• Development of a policy which establishes procedures for reviewing video and 
audio documentation. 

• Collection of tier 1 traffic stop data. 

• Production of an annual report on police traffic contacts (tier 1) and 
conveyance of that report to the City Council before March 1 of each year. 

 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  n/a 
 
 
Attachments: 
2006 Racial Profiling Analysis Report 

34

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

The College Station 
 Police Department 

Annual Traffic Contact Report 
(2006) 

 
 

 
 
 

Del Carmen Consulting, LLC 
 

35

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
(I) Introduction 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

36

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Opening Statement 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

37

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
February 5, 2007 
 
College Station City Council  
1011 Texas Avenue South 
College Station, Texas 77842 
 
Dear Distinguished Members of the City Council,  
 
 The racial profiling issue is regarded as one of the most prevalent themes among 
law enforcement agencies in the United States.  Almost five years ago, the Texas 
legislature, in an attempt to address the issue of racial profiling in policing, passed the 
Texas Racial Profiling Law.  Since, the College Station Police Department, in accordance 
with the law, has collected and reported traffic-related contact data for the purpose of 
identifying and addressing (if necessary) areas of concern regarding racial profiling 
practices among police officers.   
 
   In this report, you will find three sections that contain information on traffic-
based contact data along with documentation which aims at demonstrating the manner in 
which the College Station Police Department has complied with the Texas Racial 
Profiling Law.  Specifically, section 1 contains the table of contents in addition to the 
Texas Senate Bill (SB1074) which introduced the Texas Racial Profiling Law.  Also, in 
this section, a list of requirements relevant to the Racial Profiling Law as established by 
TCLEOSE (Texas Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education) is 
included.  In addition, sections 2 and 3 contain documentation which demonstrates 
compliance by the College Station Police Department relevant to the requirements as 
established in the Texas Racial Profiling Law.  That is, documents relevant to the 
implementation of an institutional policy banning racial profiling, the implementation of 
a racial profiling complaint process (which has been disclosed to the public), and the 
training administered to all law enforcement personnel, are included. 
 
 The final component of this report provides statistical data relevant to contacts, 
made during the course of traffic stops, between 1/1/06 and 12/31/06.  This information 
has been analyzed and compared to data derived from the U.S. Census Bureau’s Fair 
Roads Standard and to traffic-based contact data collected between 2002 and 2005.  The 
final analysis and recommendations are also included in this report.   
 

I am hopeful that the findings presented in this report serve as evidence of the 
College Station Police Department’s commitment to comply with the Texas Racial 
Profiling Law.   
 
Sincerely, 
 
Alex del Carmen, Ph.D. 
Del Carmen Consulting, LLC 
 
 

38

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 

 
Table of Contents 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

39

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 

Table of Contents 
 

 
(I) Introduction 

 
a) Opening Statement 
 
b) Table of Contents   

 
c) TCLEOSE  Guidelines  

 
d) The Texas Law on Racial Profiling (S.B. 1074) 

 
 

(II) Responding to the Texas Racial Profiling Law 
 

a) Institutional Policy on Racial Profiling  
 
b) Educational Campaign Relevant to the Complaint Process— 
      Addressing Allegations of Racial Profiling Practices  

 
c) Racial Profiling Training of Law Enforcement Personnel 
 
d) Report on Complaints Filed Against Officers for Violating the Racial 

Profiling Law (includes outcome of investigation) 
 

e) Police (Traffic-Related) Contact Information Table (2006) 
 

f)  Table Depicting Baseline Comparison (2006) 
 

g)  Five-Year Data Assessment (02-06) 
 
h)   Analysis and Interpretation of Data (2006) 

 
 

(III) Summary  
 

a) Checklist 
 
b) Contact Information 
 

 
 
 
 

40

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 

 
TCLEOSE GUIDELINES 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

41

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

Guidelines for Compiling and Reporting Data under Senate Bill 1074 

Background 
Senate Bill 1074 of the 77th Legislature established requirements in the Texas Code of 
Criminal Procedure (TCCP) for law enforcement agencies.  The Commission developed 
this document to assist agencies in complying with the statutory requirements.   
 
The guidelines are written in the form of standards using a style developed from 
accreditation organizations including the Commission on Accreditation for Law 
Enforcement Agencies (CALEA).  The standards provide a description of what must be 
accomplished by an agency but allows wide latitude in determining how the agency will 
achieve compliance with each applicable standard.   
 
Each standard is composed of two parts:  the standard statement and the commentary.  
The standard statement is a declarative sentence that places a clear-cut requirement, or 
multiple requirements, on an agency.  The commentary supports the standard statement 
but is not binding.  The commentary can serve as a prompt, as guidance to clarify the 
intent of the standard, or as an example of one possible way to comply with the standard.   
 
Standard 1 
Each law enforcement agency has a detailed written directive that: 

• clearly defines acts that constitute racial profiling; 
• strictly prohibits peace officers employed by the agency from engaging in racial 

profiling; 
• implements a process by which an individual may file a complaint with the 

agency if the individual believes a peace officer employed by the agency has 
engaged in racial profiling with respect to the individual filing the complaint; 

• provides for public education relating to the complaint process;  
• requires appropriate corrective action to be taken against a peace officer 

employed by the agency who, after investigation, is shown to have engaged in 
racial profiling in violation of the agency’s written racial profiling policy; and 

• requires the collection of certain types of data for subsequent reporting. 
 
Commentary 
Article 2.131 of the TCCP prohibits officers from engaging in racial profiling, and article 2.132 of the 
TCCP now requires a written policy that contains the elements listed in this standard.  The article also 
specifically defines a law enforcement agency as it applies to this statute as an “ agency of the state, or of a 
county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state, that employs peace officers who make 
traffic stops in the routine performance of the officers’ official duties.” 
 
The article further defines race or ethnicity as being of  “a particular descent, including  Caucasian, 
African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American.”   The statute does not limit the required policies to just 
these ethnic groups.   
 
This written policy is to be adopted and implemented no later than January 1, 2002. 
 

42

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
Standard 2 
Each peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged violation of a law or 
ordinance regulating traffic, or who stops a pedestrian for any suspected offense reports 
to the employing law enforcement agency information relating to the stop, to include: 

• a physical description of each person detained, including gender and the person’s 
race or ethnicity, as stated by the person, or, if the person does not state a race or 
ethnicity, as determined by the officer’s best judgment; 

• the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the suspected offense; 
• whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, whether 

the person stopped consented to the search; 
• whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search, and the type 

of contraband discovered; 
• whether probable cause to search existed, and the facts supporting the existence of 

that probable cause; 
• whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, including a 

statement of the offense charged; 
• the street address or approximate location of the stop; and 
• whether the officer issued a warning or citation as a result of the stop, including a 

description of the warning or a statement of the violation charged. 
 
Commentary 
The information required by 2.133 TCCP is used to complete the agency reporting requirements found in 
Article 2.134.  A peace officer and an agency may be exempted from this requirement under Article 2.135 
TCCP Exemption for Agencies Using Video and Audio Equipment.  An agency may be exempt from this 
reporting requirement by applying for the funds from the Department of Public Safety for video and audio 
equipment and the State does not supply those funds.  Section 2.135 (a)(2) states, “the governing body of 
the county or municipality served by the law enforcement agency, in conjunction with the law enforcement 
agency, certifies to the Department of Public Safety, not later than the date specified by rule by the 
department, that the law enforcement agency needs funds or video and audio equipment for the purpose of 
installing video and audio equipment as described by Subsection (a) (1) (A) and the agency does not 
receive from the state funds for video and audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for 
the agency to accomplish that purpose.”     
 
Standard 3 
The agency compiles the information collected under 2.132 and 2.133 and analyzes the 
information identified in 2.133.   
 
Commentary 
Senate Bill 1074 from the 77th Session of the Texas Legislature created requirements for law enforcement 
agencies to gather specific information and to report it to each county or municipality served.  New sections 
of law were added to the Code of Criminal Procedure regarding the reporting of traffic and pedestrian 
stops.  Detained is defined as when a person stopped is not free to leave.   
 
Article 2.134 TCCP requires the agency to compile and provide and analysis of the information collected 
by peace officer employed by the agency.  The report is provided to the governing body of the municipality 
or county no later than March 1 of each year and covers the previous calendar year. 
 
There is data collection and reporting required based on Article 2.132 CCP (tier one) and Article 2.133 
CCP (tier two).   
 

43

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
The minimum requirements for “tier one” data for traffic stops in which a citation results are:   

1) the race or ethnicity of individual detained (race and ethnicity as defined by the bill means of “a 
particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American”);  

2) whether a search was conducted, and if there was a search, whether it was a consent search or a 
probable cause search; and 

3) whether there was a custody arrest.   
 
The minimum requirements for reporting on “tier two” reports include traffic and pedestrian stops.  Tier 
two data include:  

1) the detained person’s gender and race or ethnicity;  
2) the type of law violation suspected, e.g., hazardous traffic, non-hazardous traffic, or other criminal 

investigation (the Texas Department of Public Safety publishes a categorization of traffic offenses 
into hazardous or non-hazardous); 

3) whether a search was conducted, and if so whether it was based on consent or probable cause;  
4) facts supporting probable cause; 
5) the type, if any, of contraband that was collected;  
6) disposition of the stop, e.g., arrest, ticket, warning, or release;   
7) location of stop; and 
8) statement of the charge, e.g., felony, misdemeanor, or traffic.   

 
Tier one reports are made to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the agency an 
annual report of information if the agency is an agency of a county, municipality, or other political 
subdivision of the state.  Tier one and two reports are reported to the county or municipality not later than 
March 1 for the previous calendar year beginning March 1, 2003.  Tier two reports include a comparative 
analysis between the race and ethnicity of persons detained to see if a differential pattern of treatment can 
be discerned based on the disposition of stops including searches resulting from the stops.  The reports also 
include information relating to each complaint filed with the agency alleging that a peace officer employed 
by the agency has engaged in racial profiling.  An agency may be exempt from the tier two reporting 
requirement by applying for the funds from the Department of Public Safety for video and audio equipment 
and the State does not supply those funds [See 2.135 (a)(2) TCCP].   
 
Reports should include both raw numbers and percentages for each group.  Caution should be exercised in 
interpreting the data involving percentages because of statistical distortions caused by very small numbers 
in any particular category, for example, if only one American Indian is stopped and searched, that stop 
would not provide an accurate comparison with 200 stops among Caucasians with 100 searches.  In the first 
case, a 100% search rate would be skewed data when compared to a 50% rate for Caucasians.   
 
Standard 4 
If a law enforcement agency has video and audio capabilities in motor vehicles regularly 
used for traffic stops, or audio capabilities on motorcycles regularly used to make traffic 
stops, the agency: 

• adopts standards for reviewing and retaining audio and video documentation; and 
• promptly provides a copy of the recording to a peace officer who is the subject of 

a complaint on written request by the officer. 
 
Commentary 
The agency should have a specific review and retention policy.  Article 2.132 TCCP specifically requires 
that the peace officer be promptly provided with a copy of the audio or video recordings if the officer is the 
subject of a complaint and the officer makes a written request. 
 

44

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
Standard 5 
Agencies that do not currently have video or audio equipment must examine the 
feasibility of installing such equipment.   
 
Commentary 
None 
 
Standard 6 
Agencies that have video and audio recording capabilities are exempt from the reporting 
requirements of Article 2.134 TCCP and officers are exempt from the reporting 
requirements of Article 2.133 TCCP provided that: 

• the equipment was in place and used during the proceeding calendar year; and 
• video and audio documentation is retained for at least 90 days. 

 
Commentary 
The audio and video equipment and policy must have been in place during the previous calendar year.  
Audio and video documentation must be kept for at least 90 days or longer if a complaint has been filed.  
The documentation must be retained until the complaint is resolved.  Peace officers are not exempt from 
the requirements under Article 2.132 TCCP. 
 
Standard 7 
Agencies have citation forms or other electronic media that comply with Section 543.202 
of the Transportation Code.   
 
Commentary 
Senate Bill 1074 changed Section 543.202 of the Transportation Code requiring citations to include: 

• race or ethnicity, and 
• whether a search of the vehicle was conducted and whether consent for the search was obtained.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

The Texas Law on Racial Profiling 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

46

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
          S.B. No. 1074 
 
 
 

AN ACT 

relating to the prevention of racial profiling by certain peace officers. 

 BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE 

STATE OF TEXAS: 

 SECTION 1.  Chapter 2, Code of Criminal Procedure, is 

amended by adding Articles 2.131 through 2.138 to read as follows: 

 Art. 2.131.  RACIAL PROFILING PROHIBITED.  A peace 

officer may not engage in racial profiling.

 Art. 2.132.  LAW ENFORCEMENT POLICY ON RACIAL 

PROFILING.  (a)  In this article:

  (1)  "Law enforcement agency" means an agency of 

the state, or of a county, municipality, or other political subdivision of the state, that 

employs peace officers who make traffic stops in the routine performance of the officers' 

official duties.

  (2)  "Race or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, 

including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American descent.

 (b)  Each law enforcement agency in this state shall adopt a 

detailed written policy on racial profiling.  The policy must:

  (1)  clearly define acts constituting racial profiling;

  (2)  strictly prohibit peace officers employed by the 

agency from engaging in racial profiling;

  (3)  implement a process by which an individual may 

file a complaint with the agency if the individual believes that a peace officer employed 

by the agency has engaged in racial profiling with respect to the individual;

47

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

  (4)  provide public education relating to the agency's 

complaint process;

  (5)  require appropriate corrective action to be taken 

against a peace officer employed by the agency who, after an investigation, is shown to 

have engaged in racial profiling in violation of the agency's policy adopted under this 

article;

  (6)  require collection of information relating to 

traffic stops in which a citation is issued and to arrests resulting from those traffic stops, 

including information relating to:

   (A)  the race or ethnicity of the individual 

detained; and

   (B)  whether a search was conducted and, if 

so, whether the person detained consented to the search; and

  (7)  require the agency to submit to the governing 

body of each county or municipality served by the agency an annual report of the 

information collected under Subdivision (6) if the agency is an agency of a county, 

municipality, or other political subdivision of the state.

 (c)  The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements 

of this article shall not constitute prima facie evidence of racial profiling.

 (d)  On adoption of a policy under Subsection (b), a law 

enforcement agency shall examine the feasibility of installing video camera and 

transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law enforcement motor vehicle regularly 

used to make traffic stops and transmitter-activated equipment in each agency law 

enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make traffic stops.  If a law enforcement 

agency installs video or audio equipment as provided by this subsection, the policy 

48

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

adopted by the agency under Subsection (b) must include standards for reviewing video 

and audio documentation.

 (e)  A report required under Subsection (b)(7) may not include 

identifying information about a peace officer who makes a traffic stop or about an 

individual who is stopped or arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does not affect 

the collection of information as required by a policy under Subsection (b)(6).

 (f)  On the commencement of an investigation by a law 

enforcement agency of a complaint described by Subsection (b)(3) in which a video or 

audio recording of the occurrence on which the complaint is based was made, the agency 

shall promptly provide a copy of the recording to the peace officer who is the subject of 

the complaint on written request by the officer.

 Art. 2.133.  REPORTS REQUIRED FOR TRAFFIC AND 

PEDESTRIAN STOPS.  (a)  In this article:

  (1)  "Race or ethnicity" has the meaning assigned by 

Article 2.132(a).

  (2)  "Pedestrian stop" means an interaction between a 

peace officer and an individual who is being detained for the purpose of a criminal 

investigation in which the individual is not under arrest.

 (b)  A peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for an alleged 

violation of a law or ordinance regulating traffic or who stops a pedestrian for any 

suspected offense shall report to the law enforcement agency that employs the officer 

information relating to the stop, including:

  (1)  a physical description of each person detained as 

a result of the stop, including:

   (A)  the person's gender; and

49

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

   (B)  the person's race or ethnicity, as stated 

by the person or, if the person does not state the person's race or ethnicity, as determined 

by the officer to the best of the officer's ability;

  (2)  the traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been 

violated or the suspected offense;

  (3)  whether the officer conducted a search as a result 

of the stop and, if so, whether the person detained consented to the search;

  (4)  whether any contraband was discovered in the 

course of the search and the type of contraband discovered;

  (5)  whether probable cause to search existed and the 

facts supporting the existence of that probable cause;

  (6)  whether the officer made an arrest as a result of 

the stop or the search, including a statement of the offense charged;

  (7)  the street address or approximate location of the 

stop; and

  (8)  whether the officer issued a warning or a citation 

as a result of the stop, including a description of the warning or a statement of the 

violation charged.

 Art. 2.134.  COMPILATION AND ANALYSIS OF 

INFORMATION COLLECTED.  (a)  In this article, "pedestrian stop" means an 

interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is being detained for the 

purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual is not under arrest.

 (b)  A law enforcement agency shall compile and analyze the 

information contained in each report received by the agency under Article 2.133.  Not 

later than March 1 of each year, each local law enforcement agency shall submit a report 

containing the information compiled during the previous calendar year to the governing 

50

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

body of each county or municipality served by the agency in a manner approved by the 

agency.

 (c)  A report required under Subsection (b) must include:

  (1)  a comparative analysis of the information 

compiled under Article 2.133 to:

   (A)  determine the prevalence of racial 

profiling by peace officers employed by the agency; and

   (B)  examine the disposition of traffic and 

pedestrian stops made by officers employed by the agency, including searches resulting 

from the stops; and

  (2)  information relating to each complaint filed with 

the agency alleging that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial 

profiling.

 (d)  A report required under Subsection (b) may not include 

identifying information about a peace officer who makes a traffic or pedestrian stop or 

about an individual who is stopped or arrested by a peace officer.  This subsection does 

not affect the reporting of information required under Article 2.133(b)(1).

 (e)  The Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards 

and Education shall develop guidelines for compiling and reporting information as 

required by this article.

 (f)  The data collected as a result of the reporting requirements 

of this article shall not constitute prima facie evidence of racial profiling.

 Art. 2.135.  EXEMPTION FOR AGENCIES USING VIDEO 

AND AUDIO EQUIPMENT.  (a)  A peace officer is exempt from the reporting 

requirement under Article 2.133 and a law enforcement agency is exempt from the 

compilation, analysis, and reporting requirements under Article 2.134 if:

51

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

  (1)  during the calendar year preceding the date that a 

report under Article 2.134 is required to be submitted:

   (A)  each law enforcement motor vehicle 

regularly used by an officer employed by the agency to make traffic and pedestrian stops 

is equipped with video camera and transmitter-activated equipment and each law 

enforcement motorcycle regularly used to make traffic and pedestrian stops is equipped 

with transmitter-activated equipment; and

   (B)  each traffic and pedestrian stop made by 

an officer employed by the agency that is capable of being recorded by video and audio 

or audio equipment, as appropriate, is recorded by using the equipment; or

  (2)  the governing body of the county or municipality 

served by the law enforcement agency, in conjunction with the law enforcement agency, 

certifies to the Department of Public Safety, not later than the date specified by rule by 

the department, that the law enforcement agency needs funds or video and audio 

equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as described by 

Subsection (a)(1)(A) and the agency does not receive from the state funds or video and 

audio equipment sufficient, as determined by the department, for the agency to 

accomplish that purpose.

 (b)  Except as otherwise provided by this subsection, a law 

enforcement agency that is exempt from the requirements under Article 2.134 shall retain 

the video and audio or audio documentation of each traffic and pedestrian stop for at least 

90 days after the date of the stop.  If a complaint is filed with the law enforcement agency 

alleging that a peace officer employed by the agency has engaged in racial profiling with 

respect to a traffic or pedestrian stop, the agency shall retain the video and audio or audio 

record of the stop until final disposition of the complaint.

52

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 (c)  This article does not affect the collection or reporting 

requirements under Article 2.132.

 Art. 2.136.  LIABILITY.  A peace officer is not liable for 

damages arising from an act relating to the collection or reporting of information as 

required by Article 2.133 or under a policy adopted under Article 2.132.

 Art. 2.137.  PROVISION OF FUNDING OR EQUIPMENT.  

(a)  The Department of Public Safety shall adopt rules for providing funds or video and 

audio equipment to law enforcement agencies for the purpose of installing video and 

audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A), including specifying criteria to 

prioritize funding or equipment provided to law enforcement agencies.  The criteria may 

include consideration of tax effort, financial hardship, available revenue, and budget 

surpluses.  The criteria must give priority to:

  (1)  law enforcement agencies that employ peace 

officers whose primary duty is traffic enforcement;

  (2)  smaller jurisdictions; and

  (3)  municipal and county law enforcement agencies.

 (b)  The Department of Public Safety shall collaborate with an 

institution of higher education to identify law enforcement agencies that need funds or 

video and audio equipment for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as 

described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A).  The collaboration may include the use of a survey 

to assist in developing criteria to prioritize funding or equipment provided to law 

enforcement agencies.

 (c)  To receive funds or video and audio equipment from the 

state for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 

2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the 

law enforcement agency serving the county or municipality, shall certify to the 

53

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency needs funds or video and 

audio equipment for that purpose.

 (d)  On receipt of funds or video and audio equipment from the 

state for the purpose of installing video and audio equipment as described by Article 

2.135(a)(1)(A), the governing body of a county or municipality, in conjunction with the 

law enforcement agency serving the county or municipality, shall certify to the 

Department of Public Safety that the law enforcement agency has installed video and 

audio equipment as described by Article 2.135(a)(1)(A) and is using the equipment as 

required by Article 2.135(a)(1).

 Art. 2.138.  RULES.  The Department of Public Safety may 

adopt rules to implement Articles 2.131-2.137.

 SECTION 2.  Chapter 3, Code of Criminal Procedure, is 

amended by adding Article 3.05 to read as follows: 

 Art. 3.05.  RACIAL PROFILING.  In this code, "racial 

profiling" means a law enforcement-initiated action based on an individual's race, 

ethnicity, or national origin rather than on the individual's behavior or on information 

identifying the individual as having engaged in criminal activity.

 SECTION 3.  Section 96.641, Education Code, is amended by 

adding Subsection (j) to read as follows: 

 (j)  As part of the initial training and continuing education for 

police chiefs required under this section, the institute shall establish a program on racial 

profiling.  The program must include an examination of the best practices for:

  (1)  monitoring peace officers' compliance with laws 

and internal agency policies relating to racial profiling;

  (2)  implementing laws and internal agency policies 

relating to preventing racial profiling; and

54

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

  (3)  analyzing and reporting collected information.

 SECTION 4.  Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, is 

amended by adding Subsection (e) to read as follows: 

 (e)  As part of the minimum curriculum requirements, the 

commission shall establish a statewide comprehensive education and training program on 

racial profiling for officers licensed under this chapter.  An officer shall complete a 

program established under this subsection not later than the second anniversary of the 

date the officer is licensed under this chapter or the date the officer applies for an 

intermediate proficiency certificate, whichever date is earlier.

 SECTION 5.  Section 1701.402, Occupations Code, is 

amended by adding Subsection (d) to read as follows: 

 (d)  As a requirement for an intermediate proficiency 

certificate, an officer must complete an education and training program on racial profiling 

established by the commission under Section 1701.253(e).

 SECTION 6.  Section 543.202, Transportation Code, is 

amended to read as follows: 

 Sec. 543.202.  FORM OF RECORD.  (a)  In this section, "race 

or ethnicity" means of a particular descent, including Caucasian, African, Hispanic, 

Asian, or Native American descent.

 (b)  The record must be made on a form or by a data 

processing method acceptable to the department and must include: 

  (1)  the name, address, physical description, including 

race or ethnicity, date of birth, and driver's license number of the person charged; 

  (2)  the registration number of the vehicle involved; 

  (3)  whether the vehicle was a commercial motor 

vehicle as defined by Chapter 522 or was involved in transporting hazardous materials; 

55

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

  (4)  the person's social security number, if the person 

was operating a commercial motor vehicle or was the holder of a commercial driver's 

license or commercial driver learner's permit; 

  (5)  the date and nature of the offense, including 

whether the offense was a serious traffic violation as defined by Chapter 522; 

  (6)  whether a search of the vehicle was conducted 

and whether consent for the search was obtained;

  (7)  the plea, the judgment, and whether bail was 

forfeited; 

  (8) [(7)]  the date of conviction; and 

  (9) [(8)]  the amount of the fine or forfeiture. 

 SECTION 7.  Not later than January 1, 2002, a law 

enforcement agency shall adopt and implement a policy and begin collecting information 

under the policy as required by Article 2.132, Code of Criminal Procedure, as added by 

this Act.  A local law enforcement agency shall first submit information to the governing 

body of each county or municipality served by the agency as required by Article 2.132, 

Code of Criminal Procedure, as added by this Act, on March 1, 2003.  The first 

submission of information shall consist of information compiled by the agency during the 

period beginning January 1, 2002, and ending December 31, 2002. 

 SECTION 8.  A local law enforcement agency shall first 

submit information to the governing body of each county or municipality served by the 

agency as required by Article 2.134, Code of Criminal Procedure, as added by this Act, 

on March 1, 2004.  The first submission of information shall consist of information 

compiled by the agency during the period beginning January 1, 2003, and ending 

December 31, 2003. 

  

56

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 SECTION 9.  Not later than January 1, 2002: 

  (1)  the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer 

Standards and Education shall establish an education and training program on racial 

profiling as required by Subsection (e), Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, as added by 

this Act; and 

  (2)  the Bill Blackwood Law Enforcement 

Management Institute of Texas shall establish a program on racial profiling as required 

by Subsection (j), Section 96.641, Education Code, as added by this Act. 

 SECTION 10.  A person who on the effective date of this Act 

holds an intermediate proficiency certificate issued by the Commission on Law 

Enforcement Officer Standards and Education or has held a peace officer license issued 

by the Commission on Law Enforcement Officer Standards and Education for at least 

two years shall complete an education and training program on racial profiling 

established under Subsection (e), Section 1701.253, Occupations Code, as added by this 

Act, not later than September 1, 2003. 

 SECTION 11.  An individual appointed or elected as a police 

chief before the effective date of this Act shall complete a program on racial profiling 

established under Subsection (j), Section 96.641, Education Code, as added by this Act, 

not later than September 1, 2003. 

 SECTION 12.  This Act takes effect September 1, 2001. 

 

 

 

 
 
_______________________________     _______________________________ 
    President of the Senate              Speaker of the House 
 

57

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1074 passed the Senate on 

April 4, 2001, by the following vote:  Yeas 28, Nays 2; May 21, 2001, Senate refused to 

concur in House amendments and requested appointment of Conference Committee; 

May 22, 2001, House granted request of the Senate; May 24, 2001, Senate adopted 

Conference Committee Report by a viva-voce vote. 
 
 
 
                                    _______________________________ 
                                        Secretary of the Senate 
 

 I hereby certify that S.B. No. 1074 passed the House, with 

amendments, on May 15, 2001, by a non-record vote; May 22, 2001, House granted 

request of the Senate for appointment of Conference Committee; May 24, 2001, House 

adopted Conference Committee Report by a non-record vote. 
 
 
 
                                    _______________________________ 
                                        Chief Clerk of the House 
 
 
 
Approved: 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
             Date 
 
 
_______________________________ 
           Governor 
 
 

 

58

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
(II) Responding to the Law 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

59

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
Institutional Policy on Racial 

Profiling 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

60

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 

Chapter 65         BIASED BASED PROFILING 
The practice of bias based policing by law enforcement personnel undermines legitimate law enforcement 
efforts and may lead to claims of civil rights violations. It often alienates citizens and may foster distrust of 
law enforcement within the community. 
This directive reaffirms the department’s commitment to unbiased policing by identifying specific acts that 
would be considered bias based policing and outlining procedures to address requirements of Article 2.131-
137 of the Code of Criminal Procedure. 
This directive does not prohibit police personnel from stopping or detaining individuals if a specific report 
exists in which an individual’s race, national origin, citizenship, religion, ethnicity, age, gender or sexual 
orientation is an identifying factor in determining the existence of probable cause for taking police action. 

POLICY: 

Members of the College Station Police Department will not engage in any activities that are 
discriminatory or indicative of the practice of bias based policing. Personnel will focus on the 
behavior of an individual and/or specific suspect information in taking police action. Individuals 
will not be targeted for enforcement action, detention, field contacts, asset seizure and forfeiture, 
or interdiction solely on the basis of race, ethnic background, gender, sexual orientation, 
religion, economic status, age, cultural group or any other identifiable group. Appropriate 
corrective action will be taken, after investigation, against any employee who engages in bias 
based policing. Such an investigation may result in disciplinary action up to and including 
termination.  1.2.9(a)(c) 

DEFINITIONS: 

1. Bias Based Profiling - The targeting of an individual for enforcement action, detention or 
interdiction based solely on a trait common to a group of people. This includes, but is not limited 
to, race, ethnic background, gender, sexual orientation, religion, economic status, age, cultural 
group or any other identifiable group. For purpose of this directive the term "racial profiling" is a 
part of Biased Based Profiling. 

2. Race or Ethnicity - heritage of a particular descent, including Caucasian {W}, African {B}, 
Hispanic {H}, Asian {A}, Native American {NA}, or Other {O} descent. 

3. Seizure - any taking of property from an individual without the individual's consent or any 
restriction of an individual's liberty without the individual's consent. A detention will be 
considered a seizure, as will an arrest.  Seizure also includes any filing of documents with the 
District Attorney for the purpose of asset forfeiture. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 

PROCEDURE: 

1.  Reporting Requirements
a. Traffic Stops 

(1) Article 2.132 of the Code of Criminal Procedure requires specific information 
must be recorded for each traffic stop in which a citation is issued or an arrest 
results from the traffic stop. The required information includes: 
(a) The race or ethnicity of the individual detained; and 
(b) Whether a search was conducted and, if so, whether the person detained 

consented to the search. 
(2) Required fields have been incorporated into the citation and arrest forms to 

accommodate this data collection requirement. 
b. Reports Required for Traffic and Pedestrian Stops 

(1) Article 2.133 of the Code of Criminal Procedure requires the following 
information be recorded each time a peace officer who stops a motor vehicle for 
an alleged violation of a law or ordinance regulating traffic or who stops a 
pedestrian for any suspected offense: 
(a) A physical description of each person detained as a result of the stop to 

include the person's gender and the person's race or ethnicity as stated 
by the person, or if not stated, as determined by the officer to the best 
of the officer's ability.  The abbreviations to be use for the following 
race or ethnicity’s are: 
(i) Caucasian  W 
(ii) African   B 
(iii) Hispanic   H 
(iv) Asian   A 
(v) Native American  NA 
(vi) Other   O 

(b) The traffic law or ordinance alleged to have been violated or the 
suspected offense; 

(c) Whether the officer conducted a search as a result of the stop and, if so, 
whether the person detained consented to the search; 

(d) Whether any contraband was discovered in the course of the search and 
the type of contraband discovered; 

(e) Whether probable cause to search existed and the facts supporting the 
existence of that probable cause; 

(f) The street address or approximate location of the stop; and 
(g) Whether the officer made an arrest as a result of the stop or the search, 

including a description of the warning or a statement of the violation 
charged. 

(2) This reporting requirement only applies to those police vehicles and police 
motorcycles routinely used to make traffic stops.  Members of the department 
are exempt from the reporting requirements of article 2.133 of the Code of 
Criminal Procedure as outlined in 1 b. (1) above, provided each traffic and 
pedestrian stop is recorded by mobile video/audio recording equipment as 
directed by Chapter 62 of this manual entitled Mobile Video/Audio Recording. 

(3) The law also requires the collection of data for pedestrian stops, defined in the 
law as “an interaction between a peace officer and an individual who is being 
detained for the purpose of a criminal investigation in which the individual is 
not under arrest”. It is important for officers to recognize that pedestrian stops 
will now require a different thought process in order to meet the state law 
requirements.  A “pedestrian stop” in this new law in practice is: 

62

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

(a) a pedestrian stop self-initiated (on-view) by the officer based only upon 
reasonable suspicion, and 

(b) in which no offense is clearly evident at the time of the stop. 
(4) Pedestrian stop does not apply to: 

(a) citizens stopped during dispatched calls, or 
(b) citizen stops initiated by offenses committed in the officer’s presence 

(fights, indecent exposure, etc.). 
c. While not totally inclusive, the following examples are provided to assist officers in 

understanding when documentation of a pedestrian is required and when it is not: 
(1) Officer responding to a “burglary in progress” call stops a pedestrian leaving the 

scene. This is part of the open burglary call and is not considered a “pedestrian 
stop“. 

(2) One day after a robbery, officers stop a pedestrian in the area matching the 
suspect description. This is not an open call and is considered a “pedestrian 
stop”. 

(3) Officer observes a person throwing a rock through a window. Officer stops and 
arrests the subject. There was an offense clearly evident at the time the officer 
decided to make the stop. Officer initiates a criminal mischief call and clears as 
he does currently. This is not a “pedestrian stop”. 

(4) Officer observes two persons walking behind a closed business. No offense is 
clearly evident. The officer stops the subjects and one subject is arrested for a 
warrant. The second subject is released at the scene. The officer initiates a call, 
for warrant arrest. The warrant service call is cleared as currently done. Both 
subjects are considered “pedestrian stops”. 

d. The law does not specifically address passengers in vehicles. The law does include the 
specific terms “pedestrians” and “pedestrian stop”. Therefore, the law does not apply to 
passengers in vehicles.  

e. Warning, Citation, Arrest, and FIR forms have been modified to comply with new data 
collection requirements for use by officers to record traffic and pedestrian stops made in 
the absence of functional mobile video/audio recording equipment.  
(1) Designated fields will be completed any time mobile video/audio recording 

equipment is inoperable or unavailable. 
(2) Records personnel will ensure additional information from these forms is 

entered into the computer. 
f. A copy of all seizures related to asset forfeiture filed with the District Attorney will be 

provided to the person that oversees the Asset Forfeiture records and fund. 

 

2. Responsibilities
a. Patrol Officers 

(1) Are responsible for ensuring mobile video/audio recording equipment is fully 
operational throughout their tour of duty. Any equipment failures or repairs 
needed should be immediately reported to the on duty shift supervisor as soon as 
possible. 

(2) Conduct traffic stops in a professional manner as outlined in the chapter of this 
manual entitled Traffic Safety. 

(3) Are responsible for ensuring all required fields on associated paperwork are 
completed including those fields required for those occasions when the mobile 
video/audio recording equipment is not operational or is unavailable. 

(4) Ensure that all paperwork is turned into their supervisors at the end of their tour 
of duty. 
 
 

63

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

b. Patrol Supervisors 
(1) Traffic enforcement will be accompanied by consistent, ongoing supervisory 

oversight to ensure officers do not go beyond the parameters of reasonableness 
in conducting such activities. 

(2) First line supervisors shall randomly review the mobile video/audio recording 
tapes of each of their subordinates with the intent to determine compliance with 
this and other applicable directives.  At a minimum, one review per officer per 
month will be conducted. 

(3) Summary reports on these reviews will be completed on a quarterly basis and 
submitted to the Chief through the chain of command.  The Chief will then file 
this report with the Internal Affairs Administrator who will use this report for 
annual reporting requirements. 

c. Recruiting & Training Lieutenant  
(1) Will ensure all affected department personnel are trained on racial profiling 

issues as determined appropriate by the Texas Commission on Officer Standards 
and Education. 1.2.9(b) 

d. Internal Affairs Supervisor 
(1) The Internal Affairs Administrator is responsible for investigating any 

complaints of bias based profiling filed against any member of the College 
Station Police Department as outlined in Chapter 26 Internal Affairs. 

(2) If a video or audio recording was made of an incident, which is the basis of a 
complaint, the Internal Affairs Administrator or his designee will provide a copy 
of the recording to the officer who is the subject of the complaint upon the 
officer's written request. The request is to be made in memo form, routed 
through the chain of command to the Chief of Police. 

(3) Perform a comparative analysis of the data collected for traffic stops and traffic 
stop arrests (tier 1 reporting) and a separate comparative analysis for any data 
collected on traffic and pedestrian stops due to non-operational or unavailable 
audio/video equipment (tier 2 reporting). 1.2.9(d) 
(a) Analysis for each report will be based on a calendar year. 
(b) Summary reports of the analysis must be submitted to the office of the 

Chief of Police and the City Council before March 1st of each year. 
(c) The reports must include: 

[1] A determination of the prevalence of racial profiling 

[2] An examination of the disposition of traffic and pedestrian 
stops, including searches resulting from the stops 

[3] An examination of quarterly supervisor review summary 
reports; and 

[4] Information relating to each complaint filed within the 
department alleging racial profiling. 

[5] The report may not include identifying information about an 
officer or about the person stopped. 1.2.9(d) 

(4) Will annually review and update department brochures, which serve to educate 
the public about the internal affairs complaint process. 

(4) May make recommendations to the department training committee, or the 
recruiting and training division based on findings of summary reports. 

e. Public Information Officer 
 

64

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

The Public Information Officer will annually post a statement in the local newspaper 
outlining the Department's internal affairs complaint process. The statement will 
specifically include the process by which a member of the public may file a complaint if 
the individual believes an employee of our department has engaged in bias based 
profiling with respect to the individual. 

f. Department Web page Master 

The Department's web page master will maintain a statement on the website outlining the 
Department's internal affairs complaint process. The statement will specifically include 
the process by which a member of the public may file a complaint if the individual 
believes an employee of our department has engaged in racial profiling with respect to 
the individual. 

3. Training Requirements
a. Officers are responsible for adherence of all Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 

Officer Standards and Education (TCLEOSE) training and the Law Enforcement 
Management Institute of Texas (LEMIT) requirements as mandated by law. 

 

4. Complaint Investigation
a. Any and all complaints alleging Biased Based Policing will be readily accepted in 

accordance to the chapter of this manual, entitled Complaints/Internal Affairs. 
b. If practical, any video and/or audiotapes associated with a biased-based policing 

complaint shall be forwarded through the chain of command with the complaint. 

 

5. Public Education
a. This department will inform the public of its policy against biased based policing and the 

complaint process.  Methods that may be utilized to inform the public include but are not 
limited to television, radio, service or civic presentations, brochures, the Internet, as well 
as governing board meetings. 

b. Additionally, information will be made available as appropriate in languages other than 
English. 

 
 

65

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 

Complaint Process: Informing the 
Public and Addressing Allegations 

of Racial Profiling Practices 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

66

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 
Informing the Public on the Process of Filing a Racial Profiling Complaint 
with the College Station Police Department  
 

One of the requirements of the Texas Racial Profiling Law is that police agencies 
provide information to the public regarding the manner in which to file a racial profiling 
complaint.  In an effort to comply with this particular component, the College Station 
Police Department launched an educational campaign aimed at informing the public on 
issues relevant to the racial profiling complaint process.   

 
The police department made available, in the lobby area, web site, and local 

newspaper (annually), information relevant to filing a complaint on a racial profiling 
violation by a College Station Police officer.  This information is made available in 
English and Spanish.  It is believed that through these efforts, the community has been 
properly informed of the new policies and the complaint processes relevant to racial 
profiling.  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Racial Profiling Training 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

68

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 
Racial Profiling Training 
 

Since 2002, all College Station Police officers have been instructed, as specified 
in the Texas Racial Profiling Law, to adhere to all Texas Commission on Law 
Enforcement Officer Standards and Education (TCLEOSE) training and the Law 
Enforcement Management Institute of Texas (LEMIT) requirements.  To date, all sworn 
officers of the College Station Police Department have completed the TCLEOSE basic 
training on racial profiling. The main outline used to train the officers of College Station 
has been included in this report.  

 
It is important to recognize that the Chief of the College Station Police 

Department has also met the training requirements, as specified by the Texas Racial 
Profiling Law, in the completion of the LEMIT program on racial profiling.  The 
satisfactory completion of the racial profiling training by the sworn personnel of the 
College Station Police Department fulfills the training requirement as specified in the 
Education Code (96.641) of the Texas Racial Profiling Law.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 

 
Racial Profiling 

Course Number 3256 
Texas Commission on Law Enforcement 

September 2001 
 
Racial Profiling 3256 
Instructor's Note: 
You may wish to teach this course in conjunction with 
Asset Forfeiture 3255 because of the related subject matter 
and applicability of the courses. If this course is taught in 
conjunction with Asset Forfeiture, you may report it under 
Combined Profiling and Forfeiture 3257 to reduce data entry. 
 
Abstract 
This instructor guide is designed to meet the educational requirement for racial 
profiling established by 
legislative mandate: 77R-SB1074. 
 
Target Population: Licensed law enforcement personnel in Texas 
 
Prerequisites: Experience as a law enforcement officer 
 
Length of Course: A suggested instructional time of 4 hours 
 
Material Requirements: Overhead projector, chalkboard and/or flip charts, video 
tape player, 
handouts, practical exercises, and demonstrations 
 
Instructor Qualifications: Instructors should be very knowledgeable about 
traffic stop procedures and law enforcement issues 
 
Evaluation Process and Procedures 
An examination should be given. The instructor may decide upon the nature and 
content of the 
examination. It must, however, sufficiently demonstrate the mastery of the 
subject content by the 
student. 
 
Reference Materials 
Reference materials are located at the end of the course. An electronic copy of 
this instructor guide 

70

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
may be downloaded from our web site at http://www.tcleose.state.tx.us. 
 
 
 
 
Racial Profiling 3256 
1.0 RACIAL PROFILING AND THE LAW 
 
1.1 UNIT GOAL: The student will be able to identify the legal aspects of  
racial profiling. 
 
1.1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify the 
legislative requirements placed upon peace officers and law enforcement 
agencies regarding racial profiling. 
 
Racial Profiling Requirements: 
Racial profiling CCP 3.05 
Racial profiling prohibited CCP 2.131 
Law enforcement policy on racial profiling CCP 2.132 
Reports required for traffic and pedestrian stops CCP 2.133 
Liability CCP 2.136 
Racial profiling education for police chiefs Education Code 96.641 
Training program Occupations Code 1701.253 
Training required for intermediate certificate Occupations Code 1701.402 
Definition of "race or ethnicity" for form Transportation Code 543.202 
A. Written departmental policies 
1. Definition of what constitutes racial profiling 
2. Prohibition of racial profiling 
3. Complaint process 
4. Public education 
5. Corrective action 
6. Collection of traffic-stop statistics 
7. Annual reports 
 
B. Not prima facie evidence 
 
C. Feasibility of use of video equipment 
 
D. Data does not identify officer 
 
E. Copy of complaint-related video evidence to officer in question 
 
F. Vehicle stop report 
1. Physical description of detainees: gender, race or ethnicity 
2. Alleged violation 
3. Consent to search 
4. Contraband 

71

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
5. Facts supporting probable cause 
6. Arrest 
7. Warning or citation issued 
 
 
G. Compilation and analysis of data 
 
H. Exemption from reporting – audio/video equipment 
 
I. Officer non-liability 
 
J. Funding 
 
K. Required training in racial profiling 
1. Police chiefs 
2. All holders of intermediate certificates and/or two-year-old licenses as of 
09/01/2001 (training to be completed no later than 09/01/2003) – see legislation 
77R-SB1074 
 
1.1.2 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will become familiar with 
Supreme Court decisions and other court decisions involving appropriate 
actions in traffic stops. 
 
A. Whren v. United States, 517 U.S. 806, 116 S.Ct. 1769 (1996) 
1. Motor vehicle search exemption 
2. Traffic violation acceptable as pretext for further investigation 
3. Selective enforcement can be challenged 
 
B. Terry v. Ohio, 392 U.S. 1, 88 S.Ct. 1868 (1968) 
1. Stop & Frisk doctrine 
2. Stopping and briefly detaining a person 
3. Frisk and pat down 
 
C. Other cases 
1. Pennsylvania v. Mimms, 434 U.S. 106, 98 S.Ct. 330 (1977) 
2. Maryland v. Wilson, 117 S.Ct. 882 (1997) 
3. Graham v. State, 119 MdApp 444, 705 A.2d 82 (1998) 
4. Pryor v. State, 122 Md.App. 671 (1997) cert. denied 352 Md. 312, 721 A.2d 
990 (1998) 
5. Ferris v. State, 355 Md. 356, 735 A.2d 491 (1999) 
6. New York v. Belton, 453 U.S. 454 (1981) 
 
2.0 RACIAL PROFILING AND THE COMMUNITY 
 
2.1 UNIT GOAL: The student will be able to identify logical and social 
arguments against racial profiling. 

72

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify logical 
and social arguments against racial profiling. 
A. There are appropriate reasons for unusual traffic stops (suspicious behavior, 
the officer's intuition, MOs, etc.), but police work must stop short of cultural 
stereotyping and racism 
 
B. Racial profiling would result in criminal arrests, but only because it would 
target all members of a race randomly – the minor benefits would be far 
outweighed by the distrust and anger towards law enforcement by minorities and 
the public as a whole  
 
C. Racial profiling is self-fulfilling bad logic: if you believed that minorities 
committed more crimes, then you might look for more minority criminals, and find 
them in disproportionate numbers 
 
D. Inappropriate traffic stops generate suspicion and antagonism towards officers 
and make future stops more volatile – a racially-based stop today can throw 
suspicion on tomorrow's legitimate stop 
 
E. By focusing on race, you would not only be harassing innocent citizens, but 
overlooking criminals of all races and backgrounds – it is a waste of law 
enforcement resources 
 
3.0 RACIAL PROFILING VERSUS REASONABLE SUSPICION 
 
3.1 UNIT GOAL: The student will be able to identify the elements of both 
inappropriate and appropriate traffic stops. 
 
3.1.1 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify elements 
of a racially motivated traffic stop. 
A. Most race-based complaints come from vehicle stops, often since race is used 
as an inappropriate substitute for drug courier profile elements 
 
B. "DWB" – "Driving While Black" – a nickname for the public perception that a 
Black person may be stopped solely because of their race (especially with the 
suspicion that they are a drug 
courier), often extended to other minority groups or activities as well ("Driving 
While Brown," "Flying While Black," etc.) 
 
C. A typical traffic stop resulting from racial profiling 

73

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
1. The vehicle is stopped on the basis of a minor or contrived traffic violation 
which is used as a pretext for closer inspection of the vehicle, driver, and 
passengers 
2. The driver and passengers are questioned about things that do not relate to 
the traffic violation 
 
3. The driver and passengers are ordered out of the vehicle 
4. The officers visually check all observable parts of the vehicle 
5. The officers proceed on the assumption that drug courier work is involved by 
detaining the driver and passengers by the roadside 
6. The driver is asked to consent to a vehicle search – if the driver refuses, the 
officers use other procedures (waiting on a canine unit, criminal record checks, 
license-plate checks, etc.), and intimidate the driver (with the threat of detaining 
him/her, obtaining a warrant, etc.) 
 
3.1.2 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify elements 
of a traffic stop which would constitute reasonable suspicion of drug 
courier activity. 
A. Drug courier profile (adapted from a profile developed by the DEA) 
1. Driver is nervous or anxious beyond the ordinary anxiety and cultural 
communication styles 
2. Signs of long-term driving (driver is unshaven, has empty food containers, etc.) 
3. Vehicle is rented 
4. Driver is a young male, 20-35 
5. No visible luggage, even though driver is traveling 
6. Driver was over-reckless or over-cautious in driving and responding to signals 
7. Use of air fresheners 
 
B. Drug courier activity indicators by themselves are usually not sufficient to 
justify a stop 
 
3.1.3 LEARNING OBJECTIVE: The student will be able to identify elements 
of a traffic stop which could constitute reasonable suspicion of criminal 
activity. 
A. Thinking about the totality of circumstances in a vehicle stop 
 
B. Vehicle exterior 
1. Non-standard repainting (esp. on a new vehicle) 
2. Signs of hidden cargo (heavy weight in trunk, windows do not roll down, etc.) 
3. Unusual license plate suggesting a switch (dirty plate, bugs on back plate, 
etc.) 
4. Unusual circumstances (pulling a camper at night, kids' bikes with no kids, 
etc.) 
 
C. Pre-stop indicators 
1. Not consistent with traffic flow 

74

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
2. Driver is overly cautious, or driver/passengers repeatedly look at police car 
3. Driver begins using a car- or cell-phone when signaled to stop 
4. Unusual pull-over behavior (ignores signals, hesitates, pulls onto new street, 
moves objects in car, etc.) 
 
 
D. Vehicle interior 
1. Rear seat or interior panels have been opened, there are tools or spare tire, 
etc. 
2. Inconsistent items (anti-theft club with a rental, unexpected luggage, etc.) 
 
Resources 
Proactive Field Stops Training Unit – Instructor's Guide, Maryland Police and 
Correctional Training Commissions, 2001. (See Appendix A.) 
Web address for legislation 77R-SB1074: 
http://tlo2.tlc.state.tx.us/tlo/77r/billtext/SB01074F.htm
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Report on Complaints 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

76

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
Report on Complaints 
 
The following table contains data regarding officers that have been the subject of a 
complaint, during the time period of 1/1/06---12/31/06, based on allegations outlining 
possible violations related to the Texas Racial Profiling Law.  The final disposition of the 
case is also included. 
 
 
 
A check above indicates that the College Station Police Department has not received any 
complaints, on any members of its police force, for having violated the Texas Racial 
Profiling Law during the time period of 1/1/06 ---- 12/31/06. 
 
 Complaints Filed for Possible Violations of The Texas Racial Profiling Law 
Complaint 

No. 
Alleged Violation Disposition of the Case 

   
IA 2006-01 Violation of Racial 

Profiling Law 
  Unfounded 

IA 2006-07 Violation of Racial 
Profiling Law 

  Exonerated 

IA 2006-19 Violation of Racial 
Profiling Law 

  Exonerated 

IA 2006-29 Violation of Racial 
Profiling Law 

  Unfounded 

     
     
     
     
     
 
Additional Comments: 
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________
________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 

 
 

77

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Tables Illustrating Traffic Contact 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

78

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Tier 1 Data 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

79

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 

(I) Tier 1 Data 
 
Traffic-Related Contact Information (1/1/06—12/31/06) 

Race/Ethnicity
* 

Contacts Searches Consensual 
Searches 

PC Searches Custody Arrests

      
 N % N % N % N % N % 
Caucasian 13,660 77 140 65 74 61 66 69 256 56 
African 1,530 9 47 22 31 25 16 17 103 22 
Hispanic 1,807 10 27 12 14 12 13 14 96 21 
Asian 714 4 3 1 3 2 0 0 3 1 
Native 
American 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
           
Total 17,711 100 217 100 122 100** 95 100 458 100** 

“N” represents “number” of traffic-related contacts 
* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including Caucasian, 
African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American”. 
**Figure has been rounded  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

80

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

(Percent)
Ca

uc
as

ia
n

Af
ric

an
Hi

sp
an

ic
As

ia
n

Na
tiv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
Ot

he
r

(Origin)

Tier 1 Data (Traffic Contacts)

Traffic
Contacts

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

81

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140

(Freq.)
Ca

uc
as

ia
n

Af
ric

an
Hi

sp
an

ic
As

ia
n

Na
tiv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
Ot

he
r

(Origin)

Tier 1 Data (Searches)

Searches
Consent
PC

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

82

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60

(Percent)

Ca
uc

as
ia

n
Af

ric
an

Hi
sp

an
ic

As
ia

n

Na
tiv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
Ot

he
r

(Origin)

Tier 1 Data (Arrests)

Arrests

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

83

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 

 
Tier 1 Baseline Comparison 

(Fair Roads Standard) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

84

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
(II) Traffic-Contacts and Fair Roads Standard Comparison  
Comparison of traffic-related contacts with households in College Station that have 
vehicle access (in percentages).   (1/1/06—12/31/06) 

Race/Ethnicity* Traffic-Contacts 
(in percentages) 

Households  
with Vehicle Access  

(in percentages) 
   
Caucasian 77 78 
African 9 4 
Hispanic 10 9 
Asian 4 8 
Native American 0 .34 
Other 0 N/A 
   
Total 100 99.3*** 
* Race/Ethnicity are defined by Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including Caucasian, 
African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American”. 
**Represents rounded figure 
***Amount does not total 100% since Census data does provide value of “other” category. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

(Percent)
Ca

uc
as

ia
n

Af
ric

an
Hi

sp
an

ic
As

ia
n

Na
tiv

e 
Am

er
ic

an
Ot

he
r

(Origin)

Tier 1 (Traffic-Contacts and 
Households/06)

Traffic-
Contacts
Households

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 

86

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
 
 

Tier 1 Data  
(Five-Year Comparative Analysis) 

(2002—2006) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

87

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
(III) Five-Year Tier 1 Data Comparison 
 
Comparison of Five-Year Traffic-Related Contact Information  
(1/1/02---12/31/06) 
 
Race/Ethnicity* Traffic-Related Contacts 

(in percentages) 

 (02) (03) (04) (05) (06) 

      

Caucasian 82 81 79 76 77 

African 8 8 9 9 9 

Hispanic 7 8 9 11 10 

Asian 3 3 3 4 4 

Native 
American 

.005 0 0 0 0 

Other .3 .1 0 0 0 

      

Total 100** 100** 100** 100** 100 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Texas Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including 
Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American”. 
** Figure has been rounded. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

88

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80
90

(Percent)

C
au

ca
si

an

A
fr

ic
an

H
is

pa
ni

c

A
si

an
N

at
iv

e 
A

m
er

ic
an

O
th

er

(Origin)

Tier 1 Data (Traffic-Contacts 02-06)

Contacts 02
Contacts 03
Contacts 04
Contacts 05
Contacts 06

 
 
 
 
 
 

89

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
Comparison of Five-Year Traffic-Related Search Information  
(1/1/02---12/31/06) 
 
Race/Ethnicity* Traffic-Related Searches 

(in percentages) 

 (02) (03) (04) (05) (06) 

      

Caucasian 75 72 65 57 65 

African 13 15 20 19 22 

Hispanic 10 11 15 23 12 

Asian 1 1 .3 1 1 

Native 
American 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 .5 0 0 0 

      

Total 100** 100** 100** 100 100 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Texas Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including 
Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American”. 
** Figure has been rounded. 
 
 
 
 
 

90

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70
80

(Percent)

C
au

ca
si

an
A

fr
ic

an
H

is
pa

ni
c

A
si

an
N

at
iv

e 
A

m
er

ic
an

O
th

er

(Origin)

Tier 1 Data (Searches 02-06)

Searches (02)
Searches (03)
Searches (04)
Searches (05)
Searches (06)

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

91

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
Comparison of Five-Year Traffic-Related Arrest Information  
(1/1/02---12/31/06) 
 
Race/Ethnicity* Traffic-Related Arrests 

(in percentages) 

 (02) (03) (04) (05) (06) 

      

Caucasian 76 55 58 11 56 

African 15 23 22 38 22 

Hispanic 7 22 20 51 21 

Asian 2 0 .2 .9 1 

Native 
American 

0 0 0 0 0 

Other 0 0 0 0 0 

      

Total 100 100 100** 100** 100** 

* Race/Ethnicity is defined by Texas Senate Bill 1074 as being of a “particular descent, including 
Caucasian, African, Hispanic, Asian, or Native American”. 
** Figure has been rounded. 
 
 
 

92

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

(Percent)

Ca
uc

as
ia

n
Af

ric
an

Hi
sp

an
ic

As
ia

n
Na

tiv
e 

Am
er

ic
an

Ot
he

r

(Origin)

Tier 1 Data (Arrests 02-06)

Arrests (02)
Arrests (03)
Arrests (04)
Arrests (05)
Arrests (06)

 
 
 
 
 
 

93

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Analysis and Interpretation of Data 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

94

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
Analysis 
 
 In 2001, the Texas Legislature passed Senate Bill 1074 which later became the 
Texas Racial Profiling Law.  This particular law, which became effective January 1, 
2002, requires that all police departments in the state collect traffic-related data and 
report this information to their local governing authority by March 1st of each year.  The 
purpose in collecting and presenting this information is to determine if a police officer is 
engaging in the practice of profiling minority motorists.   
 

It should be noted that the racial profiling law in Texas requires the interpretation 
of traffic-related data. Although most researchers would probably agree with the fact that 
it is within the confines of good practice for police departments to be accountable to the 
citizenry while carrying a transparent image before the community, it is very difficult to 
determine if police departments are engaging in racial profiling, from a review or analysis 
of aggregate data.  That is, it is challenging for any researcher to identify specific 
“individual” racist behavior from aggregate-level “institutional” data on traffic-related 
contacts.  
 
 The College Station Police Department, in an effort to comply with The Texas 
Racial Profiling Law (S.B. 1074), commissioned the analysis of its 2006 traffic contact 
data.  Thus, three different types of data analyses were performed.  The first of these 
involved a careful evaluation of the 2006 traffic stop data.  This particular analysis 
measured, as required by S.B. 1074, the number and percentage of Caucasians, African 
Americans, Hispanics, Asians, Native Americans, and individuals belonging to the 
“other” category, that came in contact with the police in the course of a traffic-related 
stop, and were either issued a citation or arrested. In addition, the analysis included 
information relevant to the number and percentage of searches (table 1) while indicating 
the type of search performed (i.e., consensual or probable cause).  Finally, the data 
analysis included the number and percentage of individuals who, after they came in 
contact with the police for a traffic-related reason, were arrested. 
 
 The second analysis performed was based on a comparison of the 2006 traffic-
contact data with a particular baseline. When reviewing this particular analysis, one 
should keep in mind that there is disagreement, in the literature, regarding the appropriate 
baseline to be used when analyzing traffic-related contact information. Of the baseline 
measures available, the College Station Police Department opted to adopt, as a baseline 
measure, the Fair Roads Standard.   This particular baseline is based on data obtained 
through the U.S. Census Bureau (2000) relevant to the number of households that have 
access to vehicles while controlling for the race and ethnicity of the heads of households.   
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

95

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

It is clear that census data presents challenges to any effort made at establishing a 
fair and accurate racial profiling analysis. That is, census data contains information on all 
residents of a particular community, regardless of the fact they may or may not be among 
the driving population.  Further, census data, when used as a baseline of comparison, 
presents the challenge that it captures information related to city residents only. Thus, 
excluding individuals who may have come in contact with the College Station Police 
Department in 2006 but live outside city limits. In some cases, the percentage of the 
population that comes in contact with the police but lives outside city limits represents a 
majority of all traffic-related contacts made in a given year. 
 

For the past few years, several civil rights groups in Texas have expressed their 
desire and made recommendations to the effect that all police departments should use, in 
their analysis, the Fair Roads Standard. This contains census data specific to the number 
of “households” that have access to vehicles.  Thus, proposing to compare “households” 
(which may have multiple residents and only a few vehicles) with “contacts” (an 
individual-based count).  This, in essence, constitutes a comparison that may result in 
ecological fallacy.  Despite this, the College Station Police Department made a decision 
that it would use this form of comparison (i.e., census data relevant to households with 
vehicles) in an attempt to demonstrate its “good will” and “transparency” before the 
community. Thus, the Fair Roads Standard data obtained and used in this study is 
specifically relevant to College Station.   

 
The final analysis was conducted while using the 2002--2006 traffic contact data.  

Specifically, all traffic-related contacts made in 2006 were compared to similar figures 
reported in 2002, 2003, 2004 and 2005.  Although some researchers may not support the 
notion that in five years, a “significant” trend can take place, when considering this 
analysis, it was determined that comparing five years of traffic contact data may highlight 
possible areas of consistency with regards to traffic-related contacts. That is, the five-year 
comparison has the potential of revealing indicators that a possible trend of traffic-based 
contacts with regards to members of a specific minority group, may in fact, develop.   
 
Tier 1 (2006) Traffic-Related Contact Analysis 
 
 The Tier 1 data collected in 2006 showed that most traffic-related contacts were 
made with Caucasian drivers.  This was followed by Hispanic and African American 
drivers. With respect to searches, most of them were performed on Caucasian drivers. 
This was also followed by African Americans and Hispanics. It is important to note that 
the arrest data revealed that Caucasian drivers were arrested the most in traffic-related 
contacts; this was followed by African Americans and Hispanics, in that order.   In 
addition, no arrests were made, in traffic related incidents, of Native American drivers or 
those belonging to the “other” category. 
 
 
 
 
 

96

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
Fair Roads Standard Analysis 
 
 When comparing traffic contacts to the census data relevant to the number of 
“households” in College Station who indicated, in the 2000 census, that they had access 
to vehicles, the analysis produced interesting findings. That is, the percentage of 
individuals of Caucasian, Asian and Native American descent that came in contact with 
the police was lower than the percentage of Caucasian, Asian and Native American 
households in College Station that claimed, in the 2000 census, to have access to 
vehicles. With respect to African American and Hispanic drivers, a higher percentage of 
contacts were detected.  That is, the percentage of African American and Hispanic drivers 
that came in contact with the police in 2006 was higher than the percentage of African 
American and Hispanic households in College Station with access to vehicles.  It should 
be noted that the difference in percentage of Hispanic contacts with households that have 
access to vehicles, was of one percent; thus, deemed by some as not being statistically 
significant.  
 
 
Five-Year Comparison 
 
 The five-year comparison (02-06) showed remarkable similarities with respect to 
the traffic-related contacts.  As evident in table 3, the percentage of drivers (from 
different racial/ethnic groups) that came in contact with the College Station Police in 
2006 was similar to the percentage of drivers, from the same racial/ethnic groups that 
came in contact with the College Station Police Department in 2005, 2004, 2003 and 
2002.   However, a few differences were noted. When comparing 2006 to the previous 
years, there was an increase in percentage of contacts among Caucasians while a decrease 
in percentage of contacts was detected among Hispanic drivers.  
 
 The search figures for all five years showed, for the most part, similar patterns.  
An increase in percentage was detected among Caucasians and African Americans while 
a percentage decrease was noted among Hispanics.  When considering the arrests made, 
the data revealed that the percentage of arrests increased among Caucasians while a 
decrease in percentage was evident among African Americans and Hispanics.  
 
Summary of Findings 

 As revealed by the findings, the Fair Roads Standard comparison showed that the 
College Station Police Department came in contact (in traffic-related incidents) with a 
smaller percentage of Caucasian, Asian and Native American drivers than the percentage 
that resided in College Station and had access to vehicles.  Further, the data suggested 
that the percentage of African American and Hispanic drivers that came in contact with 
the police in 2006 was higher than the percentage of African American and Hispanic 
College Station households with access to vehicles.   
 

97

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

The review of the five-year traffic-related contact data suggested that the College 
Station Police Department has been, for the most part, consistent in the racial/ethnic 
composition of motorists it comes in contact with during a given year. The consistency of 
contacts for the past 5 years is in place despite the fact the city demographics are 
expected to have changed, thus, increasing the number of subjects likely to come in 
contact with the police. 

 
It is recommended that the College Station Police Department continue to collect 

and evaluate additional information on traffic-contact data (i.e., reason for PC searches, 
contraband detected) which may prove to be useful when determining the nature of the 
traffic contacts police officers are making with all individuals; particularly with African 
Americans and Hispanics.  Although this additional data may not be required by state 
law, it is likely to provide insights regarding the nature and outcome of all traffic contacts 
made with the public.  As part of this effort, the College Station Police Department is also 
encouraged to: 
 

1) Perform an independent search analysis on the search data collected in 
2006.  

 
2) Commission data audits in order to assess data integrity; that is, to ensure 

that the data collected is consistent with the data being reported 
 
 

The information provided in this report serves as evidence that the College Station 
Police Department has, once again, complied with the Texas Racial Profiling Law.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

98

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 

 
(III) Summary  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

99

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 

 
Checklist  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

100

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
Checklist 
 
The following requirements were met by the College Station Police Department in 
accordance with The Texas Racial Profiling Law: 
 

 Clearly defined act of actions that constitute racial profiling 
 

 Statement indicating prohibition of any peace officer employed by the  
College Station Police Department from engaging in racial profiling 
 

 Implement a process by which an individual may file a complaint regarding racial 
profiling violations 
 

 Provide public education related to the complaint process 
 

 Implement disciplinary guidelines for officer found in violation of the Texas Racial 
Profiling Law 
 

 Collect data (Tier 1) that includes information on 
a) Race and ethnicity of individual detained 
b) Whether a search was conducted 
c) If there was a search, whether it was a consent search or a probable cause search 
d) Whether a custody arrest took place 

 
 Produce an annual report on police contacts (Tier 1) and present this to local 

governing body by March 1, 2007.  
 

 Adopt a policy, if video/audio equipment is installed, on standards for reviewing 
video and audio documentation 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

101

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
 
 

 
Contact Information  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

102

Consent Item 2g



 
 
 
Contact Information 
For additional questions regarding the information presented in this report, please 
contact: 
 
 

Del Carmen Consulting, LLC 
3018 St. Amanda Drive 
Mansfield, Texas 76063 

817.681.7840 
www.texasracialprofiling.com

 
 
Disclaimer: The author of this report, Alejandro del Carmen/del Carmen Consulting, 
LLC, is not liable for any omissions or errors committed in the acquisition, analysis, or 
creation of this report. Further, Dr. del Carmen/del Carmen Consulting is not responsible 
for the inappropriate use and distribution of information contained in this report.  Further, 
no liability shall be incurred as a result of any harm that may be caused to individuals 
and/or organizations as a result of the information contained in this report.   
 
 

103

Consent Item 2g



March 22, 2007 
Consent Agenda  

Purchase of Various Padmount Transformers 
 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer 
 
Agenda Caption:  Presentation, possible action and discussion on a bid award for the 
purchase of various padmount transformers maintained in inventory to HD Supply for 
$43,050.00 and KBS Electrical for $16,875.00 for total expenditures of $59,925.00.  Bid #07-57 
 
Recommendation(s): Recommend award to the lowest, responsible bidders meeting 
specifications as follows with expenditures totaling $59,925.00.   
 
I. HD Supply      $  43,050.00 
II. KBS Electrical    $  16,875.00 
 
 TOTAL     $59,925.00 
 
Summary: These purchases will be made upon award of this agreement.  The transformers 
are maintained in the electrical inventory and expensed as necessary.  These transformers are 
bought and kept in stock.  Typically, our price agreements include firm, fixed pricing for 12 
months; however, this industry is unusually volatile at this time, and in order to get the best 
pricing possible, we will make these purchases immediately upon award and place these 
transformers in our inventory.   
 
The recommendation is based on a total owning cost, or evaluated cost, which is calculated by 
using the initial cost of the transformer and cost to operate the transformer over a period of time.  
This is designed to determine the best overall value to the City over the life of the transformers.  
A total cost within 3% of the low owning cost is considered.  If the initial cost and the owning 
cost are within 3%, the initial cost low bidder is recommended for award.  Factors included in 
calculating total owning cost includes: transformer load losses, engineer expenses for 
installation, and exceptions taken to the bid specifications. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: Three (3) sealed, competitive bids were received and 
opened on February 20, 2007.  Funds are budgeted and available in the Electrical Fund.  Various 
projects may be expensed as supplies are pulled from inventory and issued. 
 
 
Attachments: Bid Tabulation Summary #07-57 
 

104

Consent Item 2h



Bid 07-57 Polemount Transformers

Order Quantity: 25

INVENTORY #: 285-086-00006

Wesco Distribution ABB $837.00 $20,925.00 $1,294.19 75 Days
KBS Electrical Dist. Cooper $817.00 $20,425.00 $1,306.56 22-24 Weeks
KBS Electrical Alt. Cooper $675.00 $16,875.00 $1,185.00 Stock

HD Supply GE $707.00 $17,675.00 $1,171.91 8 Weeks

Lowest Approved Vendor for Award

ITEM NUMBER:  1

EVALUATED 
PRICE (ea) 

DELIVERY 
(weeks)

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Pole-mount, Single Phase Overhead, 15KVA, 120/240

BIDDER MANUFACTURER  UNIT PRICE EXTENDED 
PRICE 

105

Consent Item 2h



Order Quantity: 25

INVENTORY #: 285-086-00008

Wesco Distribution ABB 1,154.00 28,850.00 1,783.26 75 Days
KBS Electrical Dist. Cooper 972.00 24,300.00 1,673.20 22-24 Weeks
KBS Electrical Alt. Cooper 805.00 20,125.00 1,472.87 Stock

HD Supply GE 750.00 18,750.00 1,484.80 25-28 Weeks

Lowest Approved Vendor for Award

 EVALUATED 
PRICE (ea) 

DELIVERY 
(weeks)

ITEM NUMBER :  2
ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Pole-mount, Single Phase Overhead, 25KVA, 120/240

BIDDER MANUFACTURER  UNIT PRICE  EXTENDED 
PRICE 

106

Consent Item 2h



Order Quantity: 12

INVENTORY #: 285-086-00011

Wesco Distribution ABB $1,406.00 $16,872.00 $2,364.23 75 Days
KBS Electrical Dist. Cooper $1,310.00 $15,720.00 $2,240.55 22-24 Weeks
KBS Electrical Alt. Cooper $955.00 $11,460.00 $1,832.30 Stock

HD Supply GE $925.00 $11,100.00 $1,862.71 1-2 Weeks

Lowest Approved Vendor for Award

ITEM NUMBER :  3

 EVALUATED 
PRICE (ea) 

DELIVERY 
(weeks)

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Pole-mount, Single Phase Overhead, 37.5KVA, 120/240

BIDDER MANUFACTURER  UNIT PRICE EXTENDED 
PRICE 

107

Consent Item 2h



Order Quantity: 12

INVENTORY #: 285-086-00013

Wesco Distribution ABB $2,089.00 $25,068.00 $2,990.27 75 Days
KBS Electrical Dist. Cooper $1,664.00 $19,968.00 $2,726.42 22-24 Weeks
KBS Electrical Alt. Cooper $1,250.00 $15,000.00 $2,375.00 22-24 Weeks

HD Supply GE $1,100.00 $13,200.00 $2,274.19 25-28 Weeks

Wesco Distribution ABB $91,715.00 $0.00 75 Days
KBS Electrical Dist. Cooper $80,413.00 $0.00 22-24 Weeks
KBS Electrical Alt. Cooper $63,460.00 $16,875.00 Stock

HD Supply GE $60,725.00 $43,050.00 25-28 Weeks

$59,925.00

DELIVERY 
(weeks)

ITEM DESCRIPTION:  Pole-mount, Single Phase Overhead, 50KVA, 120/240

BIDDER MANUFACTURER  UNIT PRICE EXTENDED 
PRICE 

SUMMARY

TOTAL AWARD

Lowest Approved Vendor for Award

ITEM NUMBER :   4

 EVALUATED 
PRICE (ea) 

BIDDER MANUFACTURER TOTAL BID 
PRICE 

DELIVERY 
(weeks)

TOTAL BID 
AWARD 

108

Consent Item 2h



  
 

MINUTES 
College Station City Council 

Thursday, March 8, 2007 at 3:00 pm 
City Hall Council Chambers 

College Station, Texas 
 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT: Mayor Silvia, Mayor Pro Tem White, 
Councilmembers Happ, Gay, McIlhaney, Scotti, Ruesink  
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Brown, Deputy City Manager Childers, Assistant City 
Manager Merrill, City Attorney Cargill, Jr., City Secretary Hooks, Management Team  
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 1 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on items 
listed on the consent agenda.  
  
Mayor Silvia called the workshop meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. on March 8, 2007.  
 
Councilmember Ruesink asked staff to clarify the cost associated with annual agreement for 
purchase of water meters.  
 
Workshop Agenda Item No. 2 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding the 
Audit Committee and Audit function; and the revised Stewardship Enhancement Plan.  
  
City Manager Glenn Brown, Chief Financial Officer Jeff Kersten, and Human Resources 
Director Julie O'Connell  presented information about the audit committee and its activity thus 
far, the function of the Committee and the hiring process for an Internal Auditor.  They also 
described the City of College Station Stewardship Enhancement Plan.   
 
Councilmember Happ made a motion to permit the Audit Committee select the Chairperson.  
Motion seconded by Councilmember Ruesink.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.   
 
Councilmember Gay made a motion to accept the updated Stewardship Enhancement Plan as 
presented and the process for staffing the Internal Auditor function.  Mayor Pro Tem White 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0   Council directed staff to provide an 
executive summary of the Stewardship Plan on the City's website.   
 
Council took a break at 4:00 pm.  They returned to continue the workshop meeting at 4:15 pm.   
  

109

Consent Item 2i



City Council Workshop Meeting   Page 2 
Thursday, March 8, 2007  

Workshop Agenda Item No. 3 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion of 
transportation project priorities and funding alternatives.  
  
Director of Public Works Mark Smith presented an overview of transportation project priorities 
and funding alternatives.  Transportation Planner Ken Fogle identified the transportation 
priorities and criteria for setting the priorities.  He reviewed the "projects we need to catch up 
with our growth" and "projects that will allow us to get ahead of the curve".    He addressed 
timelines designated for each project.   
 
Mr. Smith outlined alternative revenue sources such as:  Dedicated sales tax, dedicated property 
tax, GO Bonds, and Transportation User Fee.   He mentioned that a status report will be made to 
the City Council on a quarterly basis.   
 
No official action was taken.   
 
At 5:30 pm, Mayor Silvia announced that the City Council would convene into executive session 
pursuant to Sections 551.071 and 551.087 of the open Meetings Act to seek the advice of the city 
attorney and to consider economic development negotiations.  
 
Consultation with Attorney{Govt Code Section 551.071} 
 
a.   TCEQ Docket No. 2002-1147-UCR, Applications of Brushy Water Supply and College 
Station (Westside/Highway 60)  
b.  TCEQ Docket No. 2003-0544MWD, Application of Nantucket, Ltd.  
c.  TXU Lone Star Gas Rate Request.  
d.  Cause No. 03-002098-CV-85, Brazos County, College Station v. Wellborn Special Utility 
District  
e.  Civil Action No. H-04-4558, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, College Station v. U.S. Dept. of Agriculture, etc., and Wellborn Special Utility District  
f.  Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, JK Development v. College Station  
g.  GUD No. 9530 - Gas Cost Prudence Review, Atmos Energy Corporation  
h.  GUD No. 9560 - Gas Reliability Infrastructure Program (GRIP) rate increases, Atmos Energy 
Corporation  
i.  Cause No. GN-502012, Travis County, TMPA v. PUC (College Station filed Intervention 
7/6/05)  
j.  Cause No. 06-000703-CV-85, Patricia Moore, et al. v. Ross Stores, Inc., City of College 
Station, et al.  
k.  Sewer CCN request.  
l.  Legal aspects of Lease Agreements for No. 4 Water Well and possible purchase of or lease of 
another water site from City of Bryan  
m.  Civil Action No. H-04-3876, U.S. District Court, Southern District of Texas, Houston 
Division, JK Development v. College Station  
n.  Cause No. 06-002318-CV-272, 272nd Judicial District Court, Brazos County, Texas, Taylor 
Kingsley v. City of College Station, Texas, and Does 1 through 10, inclusive.  

110

Consent Item 2i



City Council Workshop Meeting   Page 3 
Thursday, March 8, 2007  

o.  Cause No. 484-CC, County Court at Law No. 2, Brazos County, Texas, City of College 
Station v. Canyon Creek Partners, Ltd. and First Ag Credit, FLCA.  
p.  Cause No. 485-CC, County Court at Law No. 1, Brazos County, Texas, City of College 
Station v. David Allen Weber, et al.  
q.  Bed and Banks applications for College Station and Bryan  
  
Economic Incentive Negotiations  {Gov't Code Section 551.087} 
a.  Proposed city convention center and associated privately developed hotel.  
b.  Spring Creek Business Park  
c.  Game Day  
  
Council recessed from executive session at 6:53 pm. to begin the regular meeting.   
 
The workshop meeting adjourned at the conclusion of the regular meeting.   
 
 PASSED AND APPROVED this 22nd day of March, 2007.   
 
APPROVED:       ATTEST:  
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Mayor Ron Silvia        City Secretary Connie Hooks  
 

111

Consent Item 2i



  
Minutes 

City Council Regular Meeting 
Thursday, March 8, 2007 at 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall Council Chambers, 1101 Texas Avenue 
College Station, Texas 

 
COUNCILMEMBERS PRESENT:  Mayor Ron Silvia, Mayor Pro Tem White, 
Councilmembers Gay, Happ, Scotti, Ruesink, McIlhaney  
 
STAFF PRESENT: City Manager Brown, Deputy City Manager Childers, Assistant City 
Manager Merrill, City Attorney Cargill, Jr., City Secretary Hooks, Management Team  
 
Pledge of Allegiance, Invocation, Consider absence requests    
  
Mayor Silvia called the regular meeting to order at 7:03 p.m. on Thursday March 8, 2007.  
Mayor Pro Tem White provided the invocation.   
 
Fire Chief R.B. Alley presented recognition awards to Council members Dave Ruesink, Chris 
Scott, Ron Gay and Deputy City Manager Terry Childers for their service to the community.   
 
Hear Visitors:   Jessica Guidry, President of the Northgate Merchants Association announced an 
upcoming music festival scheduled for the week of March 19-23, "North by Northgate".  
 
Consent Agenda  
  
Presentation, possible action, and discussion of consent agenda items which consists of 
ministerial or "housekeeping" items required by law. Items may be removed from the 
consent agenda by majority vote of the Council.  
  
Councilmember Happ made a motion to approve Consent Agenda Items 2a - 2n.  Motion 
seconded by Mayor Pro Tem White.  Motion was amended by Councilmember Gay to accept the 
revision to the regular meeting minutes of February 22nd.  The minutes were corrected to state 
that "Councilmember Scotti made the motion to approve the settlement agreement with Canyon 
Creek Partners related to condemnation in the amount of $195,000."  Motion seconded by 
Councilmember Scotti.  Original motion as amended carried unanimously, 7-0.   
 
2a. Approved by common consent a real estate contract in the amount of $260,000 for the 
purchase of property located in the Northgate area at 306 Spruce Street for use as a neighborhood 
park.  

112

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 2 

  
2b. Approved by common consent the renewal of the annual contract with Elliott Construction 
Inc. for water and wastewater new service tap installation in the amount of $362,250.  
  
2c. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 3-8-2007-2c determining the public necessity 
to acquire right-of-way and easement interests for the Rock Prairie Road Widening Design and 
ROW Project.  
  
2d. Approved by common consent Ordinance No. 2960 amending Chapter 10, "Traffic Code," 
of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Station to allow the City Manager or his 
designee the ability to temporarily add or remove on-street parking as part of a special event and 
where safety is a concern.  
  
2e. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 3-8-2007-2e awarding a consultant contract to 
Randall Scott Architects, Inc. for an amount not to exceed $88,513.00 for the site planning and 
cost estimating services related to a city center site development plan and a cost estimate for a 
new city hall.  
  
2f. Approved by common consent an award of bid for annual price agreement for the purchase of 
electric meters maintained in the electrical inventory.  Estimated annual expenditures to Wesco 
are for $78,660.00.  Bid #07-53.  
  
2g.  Approved by common consent an award of bid for the purchase of various street signs and 
materials maintained in inventory to Osburn Associates, Inc., for $11,153.40; Custom Products 
Corp., for $6,696.00; Nippon Carbide Industries for $3,598.82 and  Vulcan Signs for $30,142.28 
for total annual estimated expenditures of $51,590.50.  Bid #07-56.  
  
2h. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 3-8-2007-2h to award engineering design 
contract 07-152 with Malcolm-Pirnie, Inc. in the amount of $198,432 for design and construction 
management services for the Parallel Water Transmission Line phase 3.  
  
2i. Approved by common consent the purchase of materials in the amount of ($39,311) under 
State contract and installation contract with Calence, LLC (not to exceed $6,500), to execute the 
water well facilities mesh radio network project, at a combined cost not to exceed $45,811.  
  
2j. Approved by common consent budget transfers for the Public Works Department in the net 
amount of $63,768, Parks and Recreation Department in the net amount of $61,641, and the City 
Manager’s Office in the net amount of ($125,409).  
  
2k. Approved by common consent the first reading of an ordinance approving a non-exclusive 
gas and oil gathering franchise agreement with Energy Transfer Corporation.  
  
2L. Approved by common consent the approval of minutes for the February 22, 2007 City 
Council Workshop and Regular Meeting as corrected.  See action taken at the beginning of the 
Consent Agenda.    
  

113

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 3 

2m. Approved by common consent approval of a contract with Meyers & Associates for federal 
legislative and consulting services in the amount of $78, 000 plus expenses.  
  
2n. Approved by common consent Resolution No. 3-8-2007-2n designating the Construction 
Manager at Risk as an alternative procurement method for the proposed renovations to the 
Municipal Court building.  
  
Regular Agenda  
  
Regular Agenda Item No. 1 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 
on an ordinance rezoning 16.4 acres at 17339 SH 6 South from A-O (Agricultural Open) to 
C-2 (Commercial Industrial), generally located on the of the east side of State Highway 6, 
south of the College Station Business Park.  
  
Lindsey Boyer, Staff Planner presented a staff report about this rezoning application.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval of the rezoning.  
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. No one spoke. Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem White moved approval of Ordinance No. 2961 as presented.  Motion seconded 
by Councilmember Gay.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0. 
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, "UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE," 
SECTION 4.2, "OFFICIAL ZONING MAP" OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT 
BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN PROPERTIES; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   THE PROPERTY IS APPROXIMATELY 16 ACRES 
OF THE ANIMATE HABITAT PROPERTY LOCATED AT 17339 SH 6 SOUTH FROM A-O 
(AGRICULTURAL OPEN) TO C-2 (COMMERCIAL INDUSTRIAL) GENERALLY 
LOCATED ON THE EAST SIDE OF STATE HIGHWAY 6, SOUTH OF THE COLLEGE 
STATION BUSINESS PARK.   
  
Regular Agenda Item No. 2 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 
on an ordinance approving a Conditional Use Permit for a multi-family development with 
no retail in the Wolf Pen Creek Zoning District located at 1811 George Bush Drive East in 
the general vicinity of the mid-block of George Bush Drive East between Harvey Road and 
Holleman Drive East.  
  
Lindsey Boyer, Staff Planner presented an overview of the proposed conditional use permit for 
Miles subdivision. The Planning and Zoning Commission and staff recommended approval.  
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. The following citizens addressed the City Council.  
Davis Watson and Darrell Dugat expressed concerns regarding this site for a multi-family 
development in WPC Zoning District.  The development is planned to be located behind the 
existing Arbors Apartments.     
 

114

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 4 

Jane Kee, IPS Group, 501 University Drive and Bo Miles, developer, requested City Council 
support of the project.    
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing. Councilmember Happ moved to approve Ordinance No. 
2962 as presented.  Councilmember Scotti seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously,  
7-0.    
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, "UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE", 
SECTION 3.13, "DEVELOPMENT REVIEW PROCEDURES, CONDITION USE PERMIT", 
OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY 
CHANGING THE ZONING DISTRICT BOUNDARIES AFFECTING CERTAIN 
PROPERTIES; DECLARING A PENALTY, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  A 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT IS HEREBY GRANTED FOR MULTI-FAMILY WITHOUT 
FIRST FLOOR RETAIL IN THE WOLF PEN CREEK ZONING DISTRICT.  THE 
PROPERTY IS LOCATED AT 1811 GEORGE BUSH DRIVE EAST.   
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 3 -- Public Hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 
on an ordinance amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan from Single-Family Medium 
Density to Office for 3.611 acres in the Castlerock Subdivision located on the north side of 
William D. Fitch Parkway across from Castlegate Subdivision.  
  
Molly Hitchcock described the proposed ordinance amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan 
from Single-Family Medium density to Office for 3.61 acres in the Castlerock subdivision. The 
Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval.  Staff recommended denial of the 
request.  
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. Wallace Phillips, developer and Joe Schultz, local 
engineer addressed the Council in support of the project and answered questions of the Council.  
 
Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing.   
 
Councilmember Gay moved approval of Ordinance No. 2963 as presented.  Mayor Pro Tem 
White seconded the motion which carried unanimously, 7-0.  
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN OF THE CITY OF 
COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING THE LAND USE PLAN, FOR THE AREA 
NORTH OF WILLIAM D. FITCH PARKWAY ACROSS FROM CASTLEGATE PHASE II, 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   THE 3.611 ACRES GENERALLY LOCATED ALONG THE 
NORTH SIDE OF WILLIAM D. FITCH PARKWAY ACROSS FROM CASTLEGATE 
PHASE II IS AMENDED FROM SINGLE FAMILY MEDIUM DENSITY TO OFFICE.   
 
Council recessed for a short break at 8:22 pm.  They returned to the regular meeting at 8:35 pm.  
  

115

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 5 

ADDENDUM TO AGENDA:  Presentation, possible action, and discussion approving and 
authoring the Mayor to sign a letter of support for the proposed Brazos County Hotel/Motel 
Occupancy Tax of two percent for Brazos County.   
 
County Judge Randy Sims emphasized the importance of this tax to the economic viability of the 
community.  He encouraged City Council to support their request.  
 
Barry Biggar, Executive Director of the Convention and Visitors Bureau, urged City Council to 
support the resolution.   
 
Councilmember Gay moved approval of the resolution as presented.  Mayor Pro Tem White 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.  
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 4 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 
on an ordinance amending Chapter 12, City of College Station Code of Ordinances, Section 
3.15 of the Unified Development Ordinance, authorizing administrative adjustments for 
off-street parking standards.  
  
Lance Simms, Interim Director of Planning and Development Services provided an overview of 
the proposed ordinance.  Planning and Zoning Commission recommended approval.    
 
Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. No one spoke. Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem White made the motion to approve Ordinance No. 2964 as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Councilmember McIlhaney.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.    
 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 12, "UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE," 
SECTION 3.15 ADMINISTRATIVE ADJUSTMENTS, OF THE CODE OF ORDINANCES 
OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE STATION, TEXAS, BY AMENDING CERTAIN SECTIONS; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; DECLARING A PENALTY; AND PROVIDING 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE.  
  
"(B) Applicability - The Administrator shall have the authority to authorize adjustments of up to 
ten percent (10%) from any dimensional standard set forth in Section 5.2 Residential 
Dimensional Standards, Section 5.4 Non-Residential Dimensional Standards, Section 5.7 Design 
District Dimensional Standards, and Section 7.23 Off-Street Parking Requirements of the UDO.  
Any adjustment request greater than ten percent (10%) shall be treated as a variance handled by 
the Zoning Board of Adjustment subject to the requirements of Section 3.16, Variances."   
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 5 -- Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion 
regarding an ordinance vacating and abandoning a 996 square foot portion of the Public 
Utility Easement, in the City of College Station.  
  
Alan Gibbs, Senior Assistant City Engineer described this item. Staff recommended approval of 
the application for abandonment of the portion of the easement.  
 

116

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 6 

Mayor Silvia opened the public hearing. No one spoke. Mayor Silvia closed the public hearing.    
 
Councilmember Gay made the motion to approve Ordinance No. 2965 as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Councilmember Ruesink.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.   
 
AN ORDINANCE MAKING CERTAIN AFFIRMATIVE FINDINGS AND VACATING AND 
ABANDONING A 996 SQUARE FOOT PORTION OF THE FIVE FOOT WIDTH PUBLIC 
UTILITY EASEMENT, SAID PORTION LYING IN LOTS 1, 2, AND 3, BLOCK 22, OF THE 
W.C. BOYETT ESTATE PARTITION ACCORDING TO THE PLAT RECORDED IN 
VOLUME 100, PAGE 440 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AND ACCORDING TO THE EASEMENT FOR PUBLIC UTILITIES AS DESCRIBED IN 
VOLUME 128, PAGE 412 OF THE OFFICIAL RECORDS OF BRAZOS COUNTY, TEXAS.   
 
Regular Agenda Item No. 6 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 
approval of a resolution awarding the consulting services contract (Contract No. 07-155) to 
RCC Consultants, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $79,870.98 for analysis, conceptual 
design and grant preparation of an interoperable multi-jurisdictional radio system.  
  
Olivia Burnside, Chief Information Officer presented this item. Members of the 
Intergovernmental Subcommittee, James Massey, Kenny Mallard, and Ron Mayworm  expressed 
comments about the project benefits.   
 
Councilmember McIlhaney made a motion to approve Resolution No. 3-8-2007-6 awarding a 
consulting contract to RCC Consultants, Inc. in an amount not to exceed $79,870.98 for the 
analysis, conceptual design  and grant preparation of an interoperable multi-jurisdictional radio 
system.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Scotti.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.  
  
Regular Agenda Item No. 7 -- Presentation, possible action and discussion on appointment 
of members to the Outside Agency Funding Review Committee (OAFRC).  
  
Jeff Kersten, Chief Financial Officer gave a brief overview of the committee membership.   
 
Councilmember Gay made a motion to appoint Stephen Sweet and Donald Braune as members 
of the Outside Agency Funding Review Committee for a three year term.  These individuals 
replaced Roger Reese and Carolyn Berrow who served a one year term.  Motion seconded by 
Mayor Pro Tem White.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0. 
  
Regular Agenda Item No. 8 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding 
approval of a memorandum of understanding to sell the Spring Creek Business Park tract.  
 
This item was removed from the agenda and scheduled for a future meeting.   
  
Workshop Agenda Item No. 9 -- Presentation, possible action, and discussion on future 
agenda items: A Council Member may inquire about a subject for which notice has not 
been given.  A statement of specific factual information or the recitation of existing policy 

117

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 7 

may be given.  Any deliberation shall be limited to a proposal to place the subject on an 
agenda for a subsequent meeting.  
  
Mayor Pro Tem White requested a workshop agenda item to discuss the overall Wolf Pen Creek 
Master Plan.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Happ.  Motion carried unanimously, 7-0.   
 
Councilmember Happ requested a future workshop agenda to discuss an update on the Hotel 
Conference Center project.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Gay, which carried 6-1.  
Councilmember McIlhaney voted against the motion.     
  
Workshop Agenda Item No. 10 -- Discussion, review and possible action regarding the 
following meetings:  Brazos County Health Dept., Brazos Valley Council of Governments, 
Cemetery Committee, City Center, CSISD/City Joint Meeting, Design Review Board, 
Fraternal Partnership, Historic Preservation Committee, Interfaith Dialogue Association, 
Intergovernmental Committee and School District, Joint Relief Funding Review 
Committee, Library Committee, Making Cities Livable Conference,  Metropolitan 
Planning Organization, Outside Agency Funding Review, Parks and Recreation Board, 
Planning and Zoning Commission, Sister City Association, TAMU Student Senate,  
Research Valley Partnership, Regional Transportation Committee for Council of 
Governments, Transportation Committee, Wolf Pen Creek Oversight Committee, Wolf 
Pen Creek TIF Board, Zoning Board of Adjustments, YMCA Coordinating Board(see 
attached posted notices for subject matters).  
  
Councilmember Ruesink attended the Student Senate Meeting.  He expressed gratitude to city 
staff who made presentations.   
 
Councilmember Scotti attended a legislative hearing in Austin in support of the Technology 
Emergency Fund.   
 
Councilmember McIlhaney attended the Brazos County Board of Health meeting.   
 
Mayor Silvia reported on his attendance at the recent MPO meeting. 
  
Council Calendars  
  
Council reviewed their upcoming events.    
  
Regular Agenda Item No. 9 --   Executive Session 
  
At 9:34 pm, Mayor Silvia announced that the City Council would convene into executive session 
pursuant to Section 551.087 of the Open Meetings Act to consider Economic Development 
negotiations.   
  
Regular Agenda Item No. 10 - Final action on executive session.  
 
Council returned to the Council Chambers at 9:53 pm.  No action was taken.  

118

Consent Item 2i



City Council Regular Meeting   Page 8 

 
Regular Agenda Item No. 11 -- Hearing no objection, the meeting adjourned at 9:54 pm on 
Thursday, March 8, 2007.    
 
PASSED AND APPROVED this 22nd day of March, 2007.  
 
ATTEST:         APPROVED:  
 
__________________________    ______________________ 
City Secretary Connie Hooks     Mayor Ron Silvia  
 
 
 
 

119

Consent Item 2i



22 March 2007 
Regular Agenda 

William D. Fitch Parkway Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan for one 5 acre lot from Single Family 
Residential Medium Density and Floodplains & Streams to Planned Development,  located at 
1850 William D. Fitch Parkway. 
 
Recommendation(s):  The Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item at their regular 
meeting on 1 March 2007 and recommended denial with a vote of 6 to 1.  Staff 
recommends approval of the request. 
 
Summary: This item is for consideration of an amendment to the Land Use Plan for a 
vacant tract of land on the north side of William D. Fitch Parkway from Single Family 
Medium Density to Planned Development.  The subject property is bound by Spring 
Meadows to the north and west and Fire Station No. 5 to the east.   
 
The Planned Development land use classification is an appropriate designation for such an 
infill tract of land and would allow a variety of residential uses including attached and 
detached housing as single-family or multi-family at an appropriate density of 9 dwelling 
units per acre.  The proposed area is five acres in size and bound by developed land; 
therefore, it cannot be integrated with surrounding properties.   
 
The applicant is proposing a mixed residential development of attached and detached 
housing built to Single Family High Density standards as a suitable alternative.  The 
applicant requested the Planned Development classification as opposed to Residential 
Attached to eliminate the possibility of a higher density residential development in an area 
that would not be supported by the City’s land use policies.  The Planned Development 
classification offers flexibility in land use in order to be sensitive to surrounding properties.   
 
The subject property is located on William D. Fitch Parkway, designated as a Major Arterial 
on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan. A majority of the tract was annexed in 1983 and the 
remaining portion was annexed in 1995.  The tracts were subsequently zoned A-O 
Agricultural-Open after annexation.  The Single Family Residential Medium Density was 
placed on the property in 1997 with the adoption of the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
Staff has received 145 phone calls and 12 emails in opposition to the request. Staff has also 
received 3 inquiry phone calls. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  None. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map & Aerial Map 
2. Application 
3. Ordinance 

 

120

Regular Item 1



121

Regular Item 1



 122

Regular Item 1



 
 

123

Regular Item 1



 
 

124

Regular Item 1



125

Regular Item 1



126

Regular Item 1



127

Regular Item 1



22 March 2007 
Regular Agenda 

1850 William D. Fitch Parkway Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning one 5-acre lot from A-O (Agricultural Open) to PDD (Planned 
Development District), located at 1850 William D. Fitch Parkway. 
  
Recommendation(s):  The Planning & Zoning Commission heard this item on 1 March 
2007 and unanimously voted to deny the request.  If the and Use Plan is amended by 
Council, Staff recommends approval of the request. 
 
Uses Proposed: Residential housing not to exceed 9 dwelling units per acre. 
 
Summary: As stated by the applicant, the proposed Planned Development District is “to 
provide residential housing that does not exceed the density of the high density single 
family land use classification, but that provides an alternate type of housing choice within 
the market.”  The PDD District is the only available district that provides for the meritorious 
modifications of the regulations that allows for the developer to provide a mix of attached 
and detached residential housing while maintaining a density standard of 9 dwelling units 
per acre.  
 
The subject property is surrounded by developed single family residential to the north and 
west, Fire Station No. 5 to the east, and both developed and undeveloped single family 
residential to the south. 
 
The property is currently designated as Single Family Residential Medium Density on the 
City’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan although an application for Planned Development is 
pending.  The Thoroughfare Plan identifies William D. Fitch Parkway as a Major Arterial in 
this area. 
 
A majority of the tract was annexed in 1983 and the remaining portion was annexed in 
1995.  The tracts were subsequently zoned A-O Agricultural-Open after annexation.  The 
property is currently unplatted.  
 
Staff has received 145 phone calls and 12 emails in opposition to this request. Staff has also 
received 3 inquiry phone calls. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None. 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map & Aerial Map 
2. Infrastructure & Facilities 
3. Ordinance 

 

128

Regular Item 2



129

Regular Item 2



 130

Regular Item 2



WILLIAM D. FITCH REZONING REQUEST 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
 
Water: There is an existing water main on the south side of William D Fitch Parkway 
and a water main near the southeast property corner.   
 
Sewer:   There is an existing sewer main along the eastern boundary of the property.   
 
Streets:  Access will be from William D Fitch Parkway which is classified as a Major 
Arterial on the City’s Thoroughfare Plan.   
 
Off-site Easements: None known to be required at this time. 
 
Drainage:   Drainage is northerly toward Spring Creek.  
 
Flood Plain: A small area of the property is within the FEMA designated floodplain of 
Spring Creek. 
 
Oversize request:  None at this time. 
 
Impact Fees:  None at this time. 

 

131

Regular Item 2



132

Regular Item 2



133

Regular Item 2



134

Regular Item 2



135

Regular Item 2



22 March 2007 
Regular Agenda 

Luther Area Comprehensive Plan Amendment 
 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance amending the Comprehensive Land Use Plan from Single Family Residential, High 
Density to a mix of Neighborhood Retail, Residential Attached, and Planned Development for 
110 lots on 89.563 acres of the property generally surrounded by FM 2818, Holleman Drive 
West, Jones Butler Road, and Luther West. 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission will hear this item on 20 
March 2007. Their recommendation will be provided at the City Council meeting. Staff is 
recommending approval. 
 
Summary: The proposed Comprehensive Plan Amendment is to bring the existing 
development into compliance with the plan. This area has been primarily developed as 
apartments, duplexes, and townhomes. There is also a small tract with a convenience 
center (Rattlers) at the intersection of Holleman Drive East and FM 2818). This area does 
not include the property developed as Walden Pond because it is currently zoned R-4 and 
reflected as Residential Attached on the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
This amendment is in response to the rezoning request for the Crawford Burnett tract which 
is also on the 22 March Council agenda. A larger area was incorporated with the intent to 
bring the entire area up to date. 
 
Staff is proposing to reflect the existing PDD zoning districts at the Rattler convenience 
center and the Canyon Creek Townhome development as Planned Development because of 
the unique requirements for open space or buffering required in the ordinances that were 
adopted for these properties. The remaining PDD for the Exchange apartments did not have 
any unique requirements in the ordinance above anything that is currently required for new 
multi-family development. Therefore, Staff recommends amending this area to Residential 
Attached, along with the remainder of the property included in this study except for 2.9 
acres at the intersection of Jones Butler and Luther West. Staff is recommending 
Neighborhood Retail at this location because of its size, and location at the intersection 
which both meet the policies in the Comprehensive Plan, as well as providing additional 
opportunity for small scale retail for this area without having to cross Wellborn or FM 2818. 
However, there is the opportunity to continue multi-family development at this intersection, 
and Residential Attached would be appropriate for this parcel as well. 
 
Budget & Financial Summary:  N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial 
2. Item Background 
3. Current and Proposed Land Uses 
4. Ordinance 

 
 

136

Regular Item 3



137

Regular Item 3



 138

Regular Item 3



Luther Area Plan 
 
Item Background: The following chart breaks down the existing uses on the 
properties that were included in the study: 
 

Existing Uses Acres Units 
Apartments 60.5 801 
Commercial 2.1 N/A 
Duplexes 16.1 86 
Townhomes 6 71 
Vacant 4.9 N/A 

Total 89.6 958 
 
These properties were developed prior to the Comprehensive Plan being adopted as 
ordinance. Staff recommended approval for a number of multi-family rezonings in 
this area which resulted in the development of The Exchange, Fox Run Condos, and 
Melrose Apartments. The properties meet the City’s development policies for the 
location of multi-family due to its proximity to the University and its frontage on 
Jones Butler, FM 2818, Luther West, and Holleman Drive East, all identified on the 
City’s Thoroughfare Plan, however the Comprehensive Land Use Plan has never been 
amended to reflect these changes to the development pattern in this area. The 
following table identifies the existing zoning of the tracts included in the study: 
 

Existing Zoning Acres 
PDD, Planned Development District 28.3 
R-1, Single Family Residential 2.0 
R-2, Duplex 4.2 
R-4, Multi-Family 55.0 

Total 89.56 
 
The proposed amendment is for a mix of Residential Attached, Planned 
Development, and Neighborhood Commercial. The following breaks down the 
proposed Land Use Plan Designations by acreage: 
 

Land Use Acres 
Neighborhood Retail 2.9 
Planned Development 28.3 
Residential Attached 58.4 

Total 89.6 
 
The proposed amendment to the plan ultimately affects 4.9 vacant acres. 2 acres are 
zoned R-1 located in the middle of the block along Luther West, and the remaining 
2.9 acres are zoned for R-4 located at the intersection of Luther West and Jones 
Butler. No existing development will become noncompliant because of the 
changes. 
 

139

Regular Item 3



 

140

Regular Item 3



 
 

141

Regular Item 3



142

Regular Item 3



143

Regular Item 3



144

Regular Item 3



22 March 2007 
Regular Agenda 

Crawford Burnett Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning .52 acres from R-1 (Single-Family Residential) to R-4 (Multi-Family 
Residential), located at 701 Luther Street West.  
 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission will hear this item during a 
special meeting on 20 March 2007.  Their recommendation will be provided at the Council 
meeting.  If the Comprehensive Land Use Plan is amended for this area, Staff recommends 
approving the rezoning request.  
 
 
Summary:  The applicant desires to use this .52 acre tract for residential development.          
The existing zoning of R-1, Single Family Residential does not allow direct access from 
Luther Street West, which is a Major Collector Street.  Therefore, the applicant is requesting 
this zoning change to R-4, which would allow direct access and the development of multi-
family units. 
 
A Comprehensive Plan Amendment will also be heard by the Planning & Zoning Commission 
of this area on March 20th, requesting a change in the Land Use from Single Family 
Residential High Density to Residential Attached.  The proposed amendment would more 
accurately correspond to the existing zoning, existing multi-family developments, and the 
desired land use of the area.  With a Comprehensive Plan Amendment to Residential 
Attached, the rezoning request to R-4 of this property would be in compliance with the 
Comprehensive Plan. 
 
The subject property was annexed in 1970. The two vacant tracts exist within an area 
predominantly of multi-family developments on the southeast side of Luther Street West.  
The property is adjacent to Fox Run Condominiums to the southwest and Melrose 
Subdivision to the southeast which were developed in 1998.  A vacant tract of 1.3 acres 
zoned R-1 lies to the northwest of the subject property.  Texas A & M University owns the 
land to the northwest across Luther Street West. 
    
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small  Area Map (SAM) & Aerial 
2. Infrastructure and Facilities 
3. Ordinance  

 

145

Regular Item 4



146

Regular Item 4



 147

Regular Item 4



 
CRAWFORD BURNETT REZONING 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 

 
Water: Existing 16” water line along Luther Street West.  
  
Sewer: Existing lines within adjacent multi-family developments 
to the south and east.   
 
Streets: The subject property is located adjacent to Luther 
Street West 

 
Off-site Easements:  Off-site easements may be required, but 
have not been identified at this time.   

 
Drainage:  Predominantly level topography with no major 
drainage-ways through the property.  

 
Flood Plain: None  

 
Oversize request: N/A 
 
Impact Fees: N/A  

 
 

148

Regular Item 4



149

Regular Item 4



150

Regular Item 4



151

Regular Item 4



152

Regular Item 4



153

Regular Item 4



22 March 2007 
Regular Agenda 

Gateway Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning 3.13 acres from C-1 (General Commercial) to R-4 (Multi-Family) and  
A-O (Agricultural Open) located at 1505 University Drive, just north of Home Depot. 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commissions heard this item on 1 March 
2007. At that meeting, a motion to recommend denial of the rezoning request failed (3-4).   
Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request.  
 
Summary: This item is a request to rezone just over three acres in the Gateway Center 
from C-1 (General Commercial) to a combination of R-4 (Multi-Family) and A-O (Agricultural 
Open) in order to continue the development of a multi-family project. The Comprehensive 
Plan designation for the subject property was amended earlier this year by changing the 
Floodplain & Streams designation to Residential Attached. During the discussion, the City 
Council expressed concerns about the jurisdictional wetlands portion of the subject property 
being developed. Therefore, the applicant is proposing to rezone the wetlands portion of the 
subject property to A-O (Agricultural Open) to prevent development in these areas. 
 
The rezoning request is in compliance with the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
Budget & Financial Summary: N/A 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map (SAM) and Aerial Map 
2. Infrastructure and Facilities  
3. Comprehensive Plan Consideration 
4. Application 
5. Ordinance  

 
 
 
 
 

154

Regular Item 5



155

Regular Item 5



 156

Regular Item 5



GATEWAY REZONING 
INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 

 
Water: There is a 12” water line along the south property line and an 8” water line in the 
Gateway Villas development to the west 
  
Sewer:  Sewer mains exists along all property boundaries. 
  
Streets: Access to this property will be via internal private access easements from either 
SH 6 (Earl Rudder Freeway) which is classified as a Freeway on the City’s Thoroughfare 
Plan or University Drive East which is a Major Arterial on the Plan. 
  
Off-site Easements:   None are known to be necessary at this time.  
 
Drainage: Drainage is to Burton Creek to the north. 
 
Floodplain: The entire parcel is within the Special Flood Hazard Area.  
 
Oversize request:  None 
 
Impact Fees:  None 
 
 

157

Regular Item 5



Gateway Rezoning 
Comprehensive Plan Considerations  
 
The Land Use Plan reflects Residential Attached for the subject property. The majority of 
the property is located in the 100-year floodplain. Jurisdictional wetlands have been 
identified as well.  
 
To the north of the subject property is the City of Bryan which is also Burton Creek and 
100-year floodway. To the east is undeveloped C-1, General Commercial and R-1, 
Single Family Residential, which are reflected as Floodplains and Streams on the Land 
Use Plan. To the south is C-1, General Commercial developed as a Home Depot. 
Between the subject property and Home Depot is a regional detention facility for the 
Gateway Development, which is reflected as Floodplains and Streams and Retail 
Regional on the Land Use Plan. To the west is R-4, Multi-Family developed as multi-
family and reflected as Residential Attached and Floodplain and Streams on the Land 
Use Plan. The jurisdictional wetlands are located on both the northeast and northwest 
corners of the subject property. 
 
The zoning proposal is in compliance with City’s Land Use Plan Plan. 
 

158

Regular Item 5



 
 
 

159

Regular Item 5



 
 

160

Regular Item 5



161

Regular Item 5



162

Regular Item 5



163

Regular Item 5



164

Regular Item 5



22 March 2007 
Regular Agenda 

Freneau Rezoning 
 

 
To:  Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From:  Lance Simms, Acting Director of Planning & Development Services 
 
 
Agenda Caption: Public hearing, presentation, possible action, and discussion on an 
ordinance rezoning 1.996 acres from  A-O (Agricultural Open) to A-OR (Rural Residential), 
located at 3105 Freneau Drive. 
 
Recommendation(s): The Planning and Zoning Commission heard this item at their 
meeting on 1 March 2007 and voted unanimously to recommend approval. Staff also 
recommends approval. 
 
Summary: The subject property is currently undeveloped and zoned A-O (Agricultural 
Open). The Comprehensive Plan reflects the subject property as Single Family Residential 
Low Density. The properties to the east, west and south are reflected as Single Family Low 
Density as well. The majority of the subject property is located within the 100 year 
floodplain.  
 
The rezoning request is in compliance with the Unified Development Ordinance and the 
City’s Comprehensive Plan. 
 
 
Budget & Financial: N/A 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Small Area Map (SAM) and Aerial Map 
2. Infrastructure and Facilities 
3. Application 
4. Ordinance  

 

165

Regular Item 6



166

Regular Item 6



 167

Regular Item 6



INFRASTRUCTURE AND FACILITIES 
 
Water:  There is an existing 6-in water main which runs along Frost Drive.  There is an 
existing fire hydrant at the corner of Frost Drive and Freneau Drive.  The applicant has 
proposed to extend a 3-in water main down Freneau to provide the property with 
domestic water. 
 
Sewer: There is an existing 21-in sanitary sewer main which runs along the rear 
property lines between Fox Fire and Indian Trail Estates.  The sanitary sewer main is 
located in a 20-ft Sanitary Sewer Easement, which is adjacent to a 50-ft Public Drainage 
and Utility Easement.   
 
Streets:  The subject property is located adjacent to Freneau Drive (Residential Street).   
Freneau Drive is a city street for the first 425-ft from Frost Drive and past that point 
becomes a private drive. 
 
Off-site Easements:  The sanitary sewer main which supports this property is located in 
a 20-ft Sanitary Sewer Easement, which is adjacent to a 50-ft Public Drainage and Utility 
Easement. 
 
Drainage:  The subject property is located in the Carter’s Creek drainage basin.  
 
Flood Plain: The subject property is shown to be encroached by floodplain per a 
previous adjacent plat and current topographic data gathered by the design engineer. 
 
Oversize request:  None known at this time. 
 
Impact Fees:  None 
 

168

Regular Item 6



 169

Regular Item 6



 
170

Regular Item 6



171

Regular Item 6



172

Regular Item 6



173

Regular Item 6



174

Regular Item 6



 

March 22, 2007  
Regular Agenda  

Spring Creek Business Park  
 
To: Glenn Brown, City Manager 
 
From: Terry L. Childers, Deputy City Manager                          
 
 
Agenda Caption: Presentation, possible action, and discussion regarding approval of a 
Memorandum of Understanding to sell Spring Creek Business Park tract.  
 
Recommendation(s):  Council consideration of the Memorandum of Understanding as 
conditions to sell the Spring Creek Business Park tract.  
 
Summary:  The City has been approached to consider selling the Spring Creek Business 
Park tract (net acreage 281) to St Joseph Health System to develop the tract as a medical 
district related development.  City staff has engaged in discussions with St Joseph 
representatives about the potential sale and have produced the attached Memorandum of 
Understanding for Council consideration.  Upon approval of the MOU by both governing 
bodies, formal documents will be drawn for final Council approval.  
 
 
Budget & Financial Summary: None.  
 
 
Attachments: Memorandum of Understanding forthcoming prior to Council Meeting 
 
 
 

 

175

Regular Item 7


	Agenda
	Consent Item 2a - Interstate 69/East-West Corridor (I-14) Resolution
	Coversheet
	Resolution

	Consent Item 2b - Victoria Avenue Parking Restrictions
	Coversheet
	Ordinance
	Location Map

	Consent Item 2c - Annual Price Agreement for Janitorial Supplies
	Coversheet
	Renewal Letter

	Consent Item 2d - Rock Prairie Road East Widening Needs Resolution No. 3
	Coversheet
	Location Map
	Needs Resolution

	Consent Item 2e - Low Power AM Emergency Advisory Radio System Purchase
	Coversheet

	Consent Item 2f - Energy Transfer Corporation Gas & Oil Gathering Franchise Agreement
	Coversheet
	Franchise Ordinance

	Consent Item 2g - 2006 Racial Profiling Analysis Report
	Coversheet
	College Station 2006 Racial Profiling Report

	Consent Item 2h - Purchase of Various Padmount Transformers
	Coversheet
	Bid Tabulation

	Consent Item 2i - Approval of Minutes
	Draft Workshop Minutes
	Draft Regular Minutes

	Regular Item 1 - William D. Fitch Parkway Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map & Aerial Map
	Application
	Ordinance

	Regular Item 2 - William D. Fitch Parkway Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map & Aerial Map
	Infrastructure & Facilities
	Ordinance

	Regular Item 3 - Luther Area Comprehensive Plan Amendment
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map (SAM) & Aerial
	Item Background
	Current and Proposed Land Uses
	Ordinance

	Regular Item 4 - Crawford Burnett Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small  Area Map (SAM) & Aerial
	Infrastructure and Facilities
	Ordinance

	Regular Item 5 - Gateway Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map (SAM) and Aerial Map
	Infrastructure and Facilities 
	Comprehensive Plan Consideration
	Application
	Ordinance 

	Regular Item 6 - Freneau Rezoning
	Coversheet
	Small Area Map (SAM) and Aerial Map
	Infrastructure and Facilities
	Application
	Ordinance 

	Regular Item 7 - Memorandum of Understanding to Sell Spring Creek Business Park Tract
	Coversheet


